' Canada
International Trade
e

Confidence ~ Contracts




Highlights
Who We foa

Sarvices

Chairman's Message

Pressdant's Message

Corporate Performance against Objectives
Management's Discussion and Analysis
Operations

Cperating Environmint

Business Activites

Internal Resources

Caorporate Social Responsibility

Corporate Governance

Finances

Financial Highlights

Risk Management

Financial Staternants and MNates

Auditor's Report

CCC Directors, Officers and Partners

Glassary

EEUBBEY



Highlights
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Who We Are

AN IMPORTANT LINK BETWEEN CANADIAN EXPORTERS AND BUYERS AROUND THE WORLD
CCC {the Canadian Cormmercial Conporation) builds international confidence in Canadian exports by endowing
them with the credibility of Canada itself.

Its principal business is to act & a prime confracior, signing export contracts with foreign customerns for goods
and senvices to be supplied by Canadian companies. CCC's participation in & contract provides buyers with
& unigue and powerful government-backed assurance of contract performance.

PROFILE

As a Crown corporation wholly owned by the Government of Canada, CCC is mandated to facilitate
international trade, in particular in government markets. CCC helps Canadian companies access the
U555, B-trillion government procurement market and meet the reguirermeants of buyers arcund the world.

Simce the Corporation was established in 1946, it has provided
assistance to thowsands of companies in every region of Canada to
generate maore than $30 bdilion in contracts with foreign government
and private sechor buyers.

By selling through CCC, Canadian companies gain access to U.5.
military and aercspace markets under the Canada-U.5. Defense
Production Sharing Arrangement (DPSA). CCC also negotiates
commercial sales on behalf of Canadian axporters, peoviding access to
a wide range of public procurement opportunities around the warld
through government-to-government transactions, In this way, COC helps
Canadian firms win export contracts on improved terms. It alse helps
=mall- and medivm-sized anterprises (SMEs) to obiain project-related  Honourable Pierre Pettigres,

working capital from commercial sources through its Progress Payment  Minister for Intematicnal Trade and

responsible for CCC, and Doug
Program [PPP). Patriquin. President of CCC.,

For buryers from around the world, CCC offers the opportunity to purchase the best that Canada can offer and
the knowledge required for comples projects, new technologies and sophisticated management. It provides
simglified access to Canadian technologies at a fair and reasonable cost with a unigue Government of
Canada guarantee of contract performanca.

Headquarterad in Cittawa, COC maintains liaison affices in major centres across Canada in cooperation with
provincial governments, ensuring regional represantation and strengthening vital links with provincial trade
autharities.

MANDATE

The Canadian Commarcial Corparation Act outlines CCC's legislated mandate to assist in the development
af trade betwsen Canada and other nations. The Act provides COC with a broad range of powers including,
specifically, “exporting goods and commodities from Canada either as principal or as agent, in such manner
and to such extent as it deems advisable."

MISSION
CCC's mission ks to serve as an effective Canadian trade instrument, bringing intarnational buyers and
Canadian sellers together and closing successful export contracts on the best possible tesms and conditions.
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SERVICES
CCC offers & wide range of services to facilitate transactions between Canadian exporters and international
buyers.

= [For exparters, CCC offers services ranging from pre-contract advice, contract managemeant and post-
contract suppert to an all-inclusive prime contracting sendce,

= Faoraign byers who acquire Canadian goods and services through COC recese a contract performance
guarantee backed by the Government of Canada and a single, dependablbe paint of contact throughout
the procurement process.

INTERMATIONAL PRIME CONTRACTOR SERWICE
CCC's Prime Contracior Sarvice is a specialized service for exporters elling to foreign governments, It
provides a government-backed guarantes of contract perfoemance as well as:

* |nternational business development support

= Advice on bid preparation and submissson

= Aczistance in contract negotistion and structuring

= A zales contract through COC with a government-backed guarantee for the customer (foreign buyer)

+ Receivable discounting and foreign exchangs sanvices related to COC contracts

= Contract monitoring and administration, incleding receivable collection, madiation, auditing and

clasecut.

CCC also prowides these services “unbundled,” or separately, on a fee-for-service basis.

ACCESS TO LS. DEPARTMENT OF DEFEMSE AND MASA

CCC provides privileged access for Canadian exporters to ihe U5, public sector aercspace and defence
market, under the 1958 DPSA and 8 related agreement betwean Canada and the LS. Mational Aeronautics
and Space Adminkstration (NASA). The acquisition policies of the U5, Departmant of Defense (LS. Dol
specity that all of its dafence purchases from Canada above USS 100,000 must be transacted through COC.

SOURCECAN — BRINGING BUYERS AND SELLERS TOGETHER OM THE INTERMET

Through SoweeCAN, an electronic marketplace, CCC matches opportunities in the United States and other
markets to the capabilities of Canadian exporters and assists them in getting the mest cut of the opportunities.
SourcelCAN Is a single point of entry to one of the largest, most comprehensive databases of Canadian
companies and their capabllities.

PROGRESS PAYMENT PROGRAM
CEC peowides Canadian compandes, particulardy SMEs, with acocess to working capital from Canadian financial
irstitutions to cover prodwction costs associated with export contracts.

PFROCUREMENT AGENT
Far foreign buyers, CCC can assume the role of procurement agent, helping them access high-gquality
Canadian goods and senvices by coordinating the contracting process and managing the purchasing cycle.
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CHAIRMAN OF THETH

ippointed the first
qadian Commercial
eated position in
articipation in the
and have had the
ping CCC remain

| am proud and deeply honoured to hay
independent Chairman of the Board of col
Corporation. Since my appointment to t
November 2002, | have been able to ensu
overall direction and oversight of the Co
opportunity to take on the exciting challe
responsive to the evolving needs of Canadian @




CCC is unique among Canadian Crown corporations. It plays a vital role in
building the country’s exports, particularly in government markets, offering
services for both Canadian exporters and foreign buyers and providing a
government-backed guarantee of Canadian exports.

International trade is a competitive and complex world in which the stakes
and demands are high. As a former member of the Board and past Chair of the
Canadian Manufacturers and Exporters, | have had the opportunity to learn
first hand the needs of exporters all across Canada, large and small. | have
also seen the importance of effective cooperation with Government in opening
up foreign markets to them.

As someone who, for more than 20 years, has been closely involved in executing
multinational capital projects all over the world, | also understand the vital
importance of CCC’s prime contracting role and the remarkable job it does in
managing the risks inherent in export projects. | have been particularly
impressed with the dedication and talent of the CCC team of men and women
who ensure the success of the Corporation.

If Canadian businesses are to excel in the world economy, the Board and
management of CCC are convinced that exporters must have state-of-the-art
resources and support in finding buyers, concluding deals and delivering on
their contracts.

As Chairman of CCC, | am convinced that the Corporation’s new, more
commercial orientation will allow it to play an even more significant role for
business. The additional resources provided by the Government last vear will
allow it to put together more complex transactions calling upon the full range
of expertise of Canada's exporters. In addition, the Corporation's new focus on
financial self-sufficiency will make it even more responsive to the export
community as it grows to new and expanded levels of service.

| believe that our prosperity as a nation and our well-being as individuals are
driven by our ability to export the quality goods and services we offer. CCC's
success in forging and expanding links between Canadian exporters and buyers
is vitally important in helping us to achieve that prosperity.

A C‘_w\»\;

Alan H. Curlzigh
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Douglas Patriguims
PRESIDEN

am pleased to provide this Annual Report for CCC, the Canadian Commercial
orporation, for the year 2002-2003. This year saw the Corporation begin to

implement its renewed mandate as Canada's export contracting agency,
fo Imamerdments, to its Act in early 2002. The performance indicators,
financial statements and management’s discussion and analysis in this report
show :J]eﬁ_nmtwe results of these efforts.




IMPLEMENTING A RENEWED MANDATE

With enhanced financial capacity provided by Parliament, CCC was able to
introduce more flexibility in its services and a broader outreach to Canadian
exporters and prospective buyers, on a more commercial basis. These activities
were supported by significant investment in new technology systems.

As a result, despite economic uncertainty worldwide, the Corporation signed new
export contracts and amendments for $951.7 million. It received gross revenues
for work performed by Canadian exporters under new and old contracts with CCC
of $1.242 billion, the highest recorded by the Corporation.

In addition, CCC generated fees for service and other related income of $8.03
million, more than 37 percent above target. This put the Corporation well on
the way to reaching its goal of financial self-sufficiency by 2006-2007 for
business outside the Canada-U.5. Defense Production Sharing Arrangement
(DPSA), the latter being financed through government appropriations.

We are very proud of both of these accomplishments. They demonstrate the
value of the Corporation’s services and expertise to over 1,970 Canadian
exporters. They also illustrate the useful role CCC plays in government
procurement programs in many countries around the world, and in contributing
directly to the creation of 10,000 export jobs in Canada, a number that grows
substantially when indiract and multiplier effects are considered.

FOR EXPORTERS AND BUYERS — HELPING AT BOTH ENDS

CCC is a unique Canadian institution. It has a proven ability to bring buyers and
sellers together and integrate the complex elements of an export project to
make successful international trade transactions happen.

Acting as a prime contractor, CCC assures the success of a project from A to Z
and is, therefore, highly valued by foreign buyers for its ability to facilitate
dependable procurement of critical services and products. Buyers gain
confidence from CCC's ability to provide a guarantee from the Government of
Canada for the success of the contract.

Exporters, for their part, see the Corporation as facilitating access to sometimes
difficult foreign markets, accelerating the decision-making process and adding
the credibility of a Government guarantee. This helps them be more competitive
internationally.

Credibility, confidence, contracts: that is the magic of CCC. The Corporation
offers vital advantages both to Canadian exporters and to foreign purchasers who
are looking for the technology and solutions that Canadian companies can

supply.




INTERNATIONAL GOVERNMENT PROCUREMENT — DEVELOPING PROMISING
EXPORT MARKETS

Infernational government procurement is a huge market, estimated at moee than US$5.5 trillion worbdwida,
We believe that much mans can be dane to satisfy a wide range of requirements fram Canadian spurces. The
Corporation is increaseng its focus on markets where it can help meet these neseds. During the year, CCC made
particular efforts to build strong relationships with potential customers and to identify opportunities throughout
the Americas. This is being done in anticipation of the completion of the Free Trade Area of the Americas
{FTAA} process, which is intended 1o bring together the nations of Moeth, South and Central Americas.

CCC's long-standing access fo L5, asrospace and defence markets through the Defense Production Sharing
Arrangement (DPSA) has allowed it to continue to suppoet this essantial and mutually beneficial Canada-
5. relatiorship. The Corporation is exploring ways to address border control and Homeland Security
concerns, COC alsa launched its General Services Administration (G5A) Schedules Program ta assist Canadian
exporters to supply more Canadian technologies to cavilian U5, agencies and o state and local governments.

In addithon to supplying high-performance technologh=s and goods from Canada, CCC i being inwited to
participate in mora and maore overseas. construction projects. We will continue to manage owr contractual
obligations prudently, and maintain the enviable leval of swccess in risk management that CCC has achieved
in presious years. Last year, nearly 99 parcent of contracts were fulfilled with no additsanal costs or losses.

During the year, COC was given a mandate to identify and recommend a fund manager for the Government
af Canada's Canada Inwestment Fund for Africa. This (nitiative is expected to provide $200 million in risk
capetal for private investments to generate growth and strengthen Canadian commercial ties across the
continent,

MORE FLEXIBLE SERVICES FOR EXPORTERS; ESPECIALLY SMEs

Some exporters do not reguire all the components included in CCC's prime contracting rele. Responding to
the diverse neads of small- and medium-sized enterprsss (SMES]. the Corporation “unbundled” some of the
sarvices it offers, such as infroducing the esporter to the potential Buyer and providing advice on how fo
negotiate and structure a confract. CCC's senvices open the door for SMEs to opportunities for which they
may mat otherwisa be in a strong position to compete. Eight out of ten CCC clients are SMEs.

PROVIDING EXPORTERS WITH ELECTRONIC ACCESS TO THE WORLD

In 2002-2003, CCC took a strategic decision to devote impartant resources to the deseloomant of additional
electronic commerce of eBusiness services. This involves working collaboratively with partners and in a
manner that is consistent with the Government's promise to Canadians to use technology to improve access
ta client-centred and integrated services.

CCC continues to be a partner with Industry Camada and the private sector in SourceCAN, whereby our
appartunities-matching sendoe filters and matchas specific U_S. and Ewopsan alectronic opportunities with
Canadian exporiers wha have registered their capabilities with SourceCAN.

An investment in a new Oracle eBusiness suite will improve CCC's Electronic Data Interchange (EDI) protocsd

for companies doing business with U.5. gowernment agencies. [t will also help the Corparatian to manage
its curment business and develop future aBusiness initratives.
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CHALLENGES AHEAD — COMMUNICATIONS, CORPORATE SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY AND GROWTH

CCC's ability te assist Canadian exporters is directly relafed to its level of awareness ameng Canadian
expartars and buyers waorldwide. Domestically, focus is being put on the estimated ¥,000 potential exporters
to government maskeis. The Corporation has developed a communicatians plan with three objectives: to
achieve recognition of 0CC among interested exporters and foraign buyers; to develop their understanding
af our roda and services; and to foster use of CCC as their partner in transactions. Close cooperation with
Canada's embassies and trade commissioners and with other export ciganizations in Team Canada will be
key to COC's efforts in thes regard.

Another challenge facing CCC is to promaote cosporate social respansibility in its global business activities.
The Corporation’s initkal focus will be on developing a regulatary framework under new environmental
legislation and en pramating transparency and efficiency in international contracting.

Looking fomnward, we will pursue OCCs mandate by growing its portlolso of eapert contracts and making its
axpertise and services svallable on a fee basis. We will focus the Corpaoration’s business development efforts
in cownfries and sectors based on relationships with our foreign customers and on our knowledge of Canadian
capabilites. We expect to be invohved in bringing together more complex projects, and will continue to
assist small- and medium-sized exporters in a varety of ways.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

CLC's staff is widely respected for it innovative approaches in putting fransactions together, for the guality
af its espertice and for its due diligence in the fields of risk management and contracting. | would like to
thank employees for the long hours of hard work that hawve gone into transiating CCC's new orientation into
reality.

| waiild like to offer special thanks fo Emechete Onucha, our foemer Vice-Fresident, Corporate Strategy,
whi left COC during the yaar to take on a new position in government. b Onwoha played a key rola in
helping ta dewelop the business and financial plan that is the besis for CCC's renewed mandate. | am very
gratefull to him.

| alse want to extend a very warm welcome to our new Chair, Me. Alan Curleigh, who joined CCC's Board in
Movember 2002. This is the first time in the Corparatian's history that it has had an mdepandent Chair. |
wizh to express my appeaciation for the special effort he has made to familanize himsedf with CCC's aperations
and assiee him of the continuing cooperation of management and staff. My sincere thanks, as well, to all
the members of the Board for their direction and support.

The year 2002-2003 has been a year in which CCC implemented the new legisletre authonties it receied
ta fulfil a renewsd mandate. We take great peide m helping customers angund the world find what they need
in Canada and in facilitating projects that woek for them and for Canadian exporters. In this way, CCC will
continue to play an actee and innovatve rale in developing Canada's international trade.

gl 0

Douglas Patriquin
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Corporate Performance
against Objectives

The perfarmance measures and résults are a quantitatimg assessment of how the Corparation has fulfilled
its mandate, CCC establishes [angels in its five-year Corporate Plan, approved by Gowernment, (o measure
bath Business and financial performance,

PERFORMANCE V5. BUSINESS TARGETS
CCC established tawgets for five key measures of business performance, a5 follows:

VALUE OF DRDERS RECEIVED

Totad $1.214 billion $1.0-51.2 billion  $951.7 million $1.056 ballion
Excluding LAVs  $855 million $210 millign $206.5 million $1.002 billion
Livs $319 million $200 million $45,1 million 554 millicn

The value of orders received by CCC, of its owerall business volume, includes COC'S sales & prime contraciorn
1o thit U.5. and athér Sountngs, &5 witll 38 éxpans supparted by the Progress Payment Program. Sakes of Light
Arrgungd Vehiches (LAVE) manufactuned by General Dynames Land Syestermns (formasty GM Defence of London,
QnRariad have beer segregated as they are made up of a small number of very lange contracts relative to ather
indiwiduwal sales, The LAY program has histarically had years of significant volume followed by pears of
propartionally key wolurmss, Spikes and dips that can significantly slter the owerall value of ordérs.,

For 2002-2003, expectied LAV a6 wirg overtaken by ewents in the Middle East and. a5 a resulf, 2002-
2003 ended with 45 rillicn in vl ume,

For the next fiscal year, CCG will 3150 report on the export impact of its activities when itdoes nol act a5 a
prime contractor, which will be measured & “indirectly facilitated exports.”

CANADIAN COMPAMIES ALCESSING COC SERVICES

1.954 1.99% 1971 2,000

CCC had et a targel of 1,995 for clients sccessing COC services, The final lunduplicated) count of 1,971
inGludes 1,572 companies receiving international apportunities matched 1o their capabilites, 170 companies
warking with CCOC a1 tha Bed or pré-Coniract stage. 215 companies contracting with CCC and 14 companies
with open contracts from previows vears. In future years, as COC places greater emphasis on unbundling and
providing & wider range of services, the total number of companies accessing all of CCC% services will
become the printipal measung of gur contast with clients,

EXFORTERS CONTRACTING THROUGH CCC

228 258 215 Ingluded abowe

In 2002-2003, COC aimed 10 increase its base of confracted supplicrs (o more traditional levels by
establishing a target of 258, However, 2002-2003 saw the number of companies cantracting through the
Corporation fall to 215, Delow the year™s tarpet and (he prevous near's results,

Ag Buyers continue to integrate or bundle their requiremients, consalidation of the procurement process will
continue 10 occur, This will mean mong work for fewer suppliers ab the prire contractor bevel, This year's
nesults ang also affected by the current Syclical downturn in Agrospace and Defence. In an effort to provide
miore options for méee clents, COG hag increased its opportunity identifcatoon and matching activitses and
partitioned its Prime Contracior 3ervice info smallern, mong manageabie semvice segments 10 mesl (he varied
ndeds of exporters. Starting in 2003-2004, the number of exporiers contractied will be refleched in the 1otal
for cormpanies accessing all of CCC services,

10 CCC  Asnual Repsrl Z002-2003  Credibility = Conflidence = Conlracis



CLIENT VALUE INDEX

1.8 1.4 7.9 To b measured dwery
twao yoars hancafarth

The Clogrt Valee Index assasses the value of COC™ services 1o its chents,

Understanding that 200:-2003 would be & yead of signilicant iransitional challenges with the introduction
ol a new Business software platform, CLC esfablished a target of 7.4, CCC exceeded s tanged with an owerall
soon of 7,96, Increased S0cess 10 resident contracting expertise and COC's focus on client senice weng grven
as reasons for the high level of client satisfaction.

This reasure of (he valwe our clients derive frorm QOGS Services priniides essential feedback 10 endure the
Coqporation remaing aligned with the évalving nesds of exporters. The condistently high ratings confirm
the appropriateness of COCs service strabegy, which focuses on delwering value for money in afleciing the
outcomi of our clients’ international sales efforts,

TIME REQUIRED TO MAME PAYMENTS TO EXFORTERS

Rigular Payments 33 diys 30 31 30
Accalerated Paymeni

Program ® 17 15* 18* i1k
*Grandfathered

CCC's service commitment on open atcownt transactions is (o pay its suppliers in 30 days, In 2002-2003,
the Conporation improved i15 results compared 10 the prévious year althaugh of fell shightly shar of its faget,
The Corporation will confimes fo focus en its internal processes neat yaar to achieve the 2003-23004 target,

While the Corporation discontinued its Accelerated Paymert Program for qualified SMEs as of January

2001, it continued 1o measure against its targets in this anea, a5 cerfain contracls under way were signed
Bfore the cul-all date, and the accelerated payment plan remained apolicable to them. As these conlracts

cormd 10 .4 chose, CCC will fio Mager repart againdt this perfonmance Tangel.

Value of ordiers received $0.7488 $1.1138 $1.3388 $l.2148 $0.9528 $1.1008

FIVE-YEAR HISTORICAL REVIEW for the year ended March 31

Canadian companies
accessing CCC services 1,885 1,810 1,795 1,954 1,971 1,995
Exporters confracting
thraugh COC 278 2ED 273 228 215 258
Clignt ¥alus Indax 7.0 7.4 7.4 7.8 7.9 7.4
Time required 1o make
paymend to exporiers
Regular piayments 31 days 3] diys 32 days 33 days 3] dinys 30 days
Bccabprated Paymsent
Program 17 days 1& days 1& days 17 days 18 days 15 days

COC Annusl Report 230022003 Credibility = Conlidence = Contracts 11



PERFORMANCE VS. FINANCIAL TARGETS
The Corporation measwres its financial performance through the Corporate Plan via six tangets:

REVENUE FROM NON-PARLIAMENTARY SDURCES

Ry

-.:'l-l.' Hpl
$9.458 million

$£7.911 million $5.927 million %8.107 million
Revenue from non-parliamentary sources measures REVEMUES FRON ADN-PAELIMMENTAAT SOUSCES COMPASED TO:
the amount of monies generated from fee-for-service, .

incceme from discounting recervables, interest income

(=]

=
and other sources excluding parliamentary allocations. ?ﬁﬂ-%w
This new parformance metric was developad in last ke Wit
year's Corposate Plan as one means te measure the g E -
Corporation’s progress towards its goal of financial =z 32 Revenves from oo-
self-sufficiency of its non-DPSA services by 2006- & S P
2007, acknowladging that revenue growth was key to 1996 1999 000 2001 2003
this achievement. The target was exceeded by 1599 200 #0L Z002 3003
2.5 million. [Eased ob results lor 2002- 2003, the Corporation el il can

surpirss the 2003-2004 target.

FEES AS A PERCENTAGE OF HON-DFSA DIRECT COST

L1355 L

ot apglicatle 0%  121% 129%

Fees a5 a parcentage of non-DPSA direct cost is another new parformance metric developed in last year's
Corporate Flan, which measwenes more directly the Corporation’s progress towards financial self-sufficiency of
its non-0PSA serdoes by 2006-2007. Tha significant increase over budget in terms of fee-for-semvice revenpes
in 2002-2003 enabled the Corporation o exceed its break-even target for 2002-2003. The Corporation has
established a target of 129 percent for 2003-2004 a5 It strives to achieve its financial goats.

HET RESULTS OF OPERATIONS VERSUS BUDGET

L s
&ESEND

525 I1'III $0.4 milkion . $0.1 I1'Ii| - 0.2 ﬂ'illibrl

CCC established a small operating surplus in 2002-2003. This was based on increased generation
af resenues from non-pariiamentary sources. Infact, an operating sunplus of 301 million was achieved,
£300 thousand less than planned. Although the Corporation was successful in achieving revenues from
nan-parliamentary sources that were approximately $2.5 million greater than planned, this was affset by a
large unioreseen foreign exchange loss of $2.7 million. This loss was due to the rise in the Canedian dodiar
wersus the U5, dollar between fiscal year-ends and the resulting tramslatson of U.5. dollar based assets and
liabilities Inte Canadian dollars. For the nest fiscal year, the Corporation is budgeting a similar operating
surplus with a continued focus on revanue ganeration, consistent with its intention to bacome salf-sufficant
in its non-DPSA senices.

MET RESULTS OF OPERATIONS" COMPARED TO BUSIMESS YOLUME

REals Taipel Ll A
Total Business Wolume {1.1%) {1.4%) {1.7%) 11.5%]
Exchuding LAVS 11.5%) (1.7%) {1.B%) 11.6%)
*Bedore Parliamentany appropnathons

Met results of aperations before Parliamentary appropriations refers to the total operating expenditures
incurred by the Corporation less revenues generated from mon-taxpayer sources, of the net cost to the
taxpayer of CCC's operations. When this cost is compared to business wolume, the resulting performance

12 CCC  Asnual Reparl 2002-2003 Credibility = Conflidence = Coniracis



metnic measures the Corporation’s productivity in generating exports for Canada, The 2002-2003 target
reflected a lower planned business volume targel compared to 2001-2002% record business vwalume
achiivermint,

In 2002-2003, COC's productivity was negatieely impacted by lower busingss volurmes due to a significant
recuction in LAY busingss waleme, Excluding this factor, COCS productraty wis manginally kewer dug o hagher
additional contract costs. On both counts the Conparation did well, compared to its histonical benchmak of
wo percent.

CCC anticipates a decrease in this figene next year, with rising business voluwmes

ADOITIOMAL CONTRACT COSTS® AS A PERCENTAGE OF BUSINESS VOLUMES
70012007 Ressds 20022003 Taget  2002-7003 Resslts 20037004 Taped |
0.03% 0.11% 0.21% 0.12%
*Before associated legal and other costs

The Corporations risk standard attempls to keep additional contract costs lexcleding associated legal and
other costs) at less than 0.2 percent of busingss valumes. This reflects the Baard of Directors” approved risk
tolerance vel, axcluding & special allocation of 3250,000 that &nables CCC to take on cerfain SME propects
that would atherwise not Fil wilhin fs rish paramelerns,

The 2002-2003 results weng highier (han farget due to & decrease in LAY busingss volurng and a higher bl
af additional contract cosis. This number varies from ond yaar 1o the ned; this vear balanced off thir el bert
results of 2001-2002, Next year's target conftinues the Corporation’s trend of priedent risk management,

PROVISION FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS WHEN COMPARED TO ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE FREOM FOREIGN COUNTRIES

0. 0% 1.0% 0.0% 1.0%

In ifs sales contracts, (he Corparatean takes accounts recevable risk when dealing with credit-approved
toreign buwers, particularly forgign governmént agencies, The target of 1.0 percent for 2002-2003 is the
Corporation’s histonc slandard, CCC expenienced amdther notable year in the suctessiul collection of accounts
reCEvable. The Corporation continues to niview ways 10 embrade acoounts rédemvable risk n non-traditidnal
markogts, 1t has re-siated last vear's target tor fhe 20032004 fiscal pear,

FIVE-YEAR HISTORICAL REVIEW tor the year ended March 31

Revenue from

non-parliamentary sources $IE2TM S5005M £7.708M  FT7O01IM  $9.458M  35027M
Fees as a % of

non-DPSA direct cost 121% 126%
Met results of operations $0.7M 20,20 £1.8M $2.5M $0.1M

varsus budget $OM S0M $l0.EIM FOM $0.4M
IMed resulis of operations®

compared to business volume (1,3%) (1.1%) {0.9%) (1.1%) [1.7%) {1.5%)

Additional conract cosis*®

as a percentage of

bisiness ylumas 0.1% 0.3% 0.2% 0.03% 0.21% 0.12%
Prowision for doubtial

acomnts compared to

acoounts receivable from

foreipn countries 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 1.05%

*Befpre parliameniany appropriations **Belore associated legal and other costs

COC Annusl Report 230022003 Credibility = Conlidence = Contracts 12



Management’s
Discussion and Analysis

OPERATIONS

The following sections proveds management’s review o CCC's operations for fiscal 2002-2003, including a
descriphion of the ervironment i which if operaies, the markets if senses and the sectors i which it =
ecpacially aotnee.

Operating Environment

EXTERMAL ENVIRONBENT

The exfernal envirgnment in which CCC operates has a major impact on its ability to sign nlesnational trade
contracts. In this comtext, credit conditions and interest rates in the Canadian economy have an important
influence on the financial health of Canadian exporters, while the exchange rate may affect their pricing
competitivensss. Ecanamic conditions in the LS. and other regions naturally affect CCC and i1s exparting
clients. In parficular, the siate of public finances in foreign governments s critical to their procurement
actreities and thus 1o COCTS sales,

CAMADIAN ECOROMY

Despite pessimestic forecasts of the Canadean economy following the events of September 11, 2001, Canada
led the G-7 countres in tenme of sconomes growth and, for the first time in more than 20 years, outper ormed
the U.S. economy. The increased divergence in interest rates between Canada and the LS. has resulbed in

& sharp rise in the value of the Canadian dollar agannst the U3, dollar,

For A0S, eopnomists expect domesiic and sapodt growth in Canada 1o contanue. However, The INCTeass in
the value of the Canadian dollar and cantinuing international uncertainties could Iower curment Torecasts.

INTEAMATIONAL MARKET COMDITIONS
In 2002, the U.5. economy was siowing shanply, pamticularly in the COMTRACT PERFORMANCE
information and telecommunications sectors, which also led to a sharp CUARANTEE

decline in many global economees. Latin America s&w one of 1S warst
years in recent history, with financkal criges in Agganting, Venezuela and
Brazil. On the siher hand. other countries in the Asia-Pacific region,
natably China and India, expersenced good grawth figures in fiscal
2002-2003

In Ewrope, although it can be assumed that European countries will
take up the majerity of opportunities arising from those Eastern
European courtries palning the Ewropean Union (EU], cenaln sectors
where Canadian expertise = recognized will provide markets for growih.

In Latin America, some couniries are now showing signs of increasing
financial strength and the cutlook appears more positive, with
discutsions on the FTAA agreement moving toward completion in
2005. Ressarch and analysis of saveral countries in Latin America
revesled the pefential for & mone robust presence of CCC in this reglon.

GChina is expected 1o lead the Asian economies once again, although
SARS-related concerns could alter this result. As the New Econcemic
Plan for African Develapment (NEPAD) inftiative takes shape, morne
commercial cpporiunities ane expected to develop in that continent.
Inpeciions of funds fram International Financial Institutions (IFIs] will lead to incressed market oppodunities

i1 sachors such as health, education and infrasiruciure.
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GLOBAL PROCUREMENT MARKETS
CCC's activity depends greatly on the strength of global public procurement markets, which represent
appraximately US35.5 trillion annually, or 19 percent of world gross domestic preduct [GDP) output

CCC has sdantified a number of important sectors in these maskets, where it believes Canadian praducts can
supply an increasing share of custormers’ needs, These include asrospace and defence, sacurity, information
and communications technology, as well as transport, energy, water, housing and environmental technologies.

The global asrcspace industry went through a difficult period in 2002-2003 and will continue o struggle
as the cammercial transport sactor postpones fleet renewal plans, due to the effects of recession and
September 11

The LS, departments of Defense and Homeland Security continue to receive budget appropriations at record
levels, fueled by the aftermath of the temorist attacks against the U.5. and the conflict in Irag.

The Latin Amarican public procurement market was severgly affected by economic difficulties in 2002-
2003, A number of countries where COC has been active underwent fiscal challenges and had to postpone
strategic investments and international purchases

The ghobal infermation and comemunications technologees sector will continue o generate new opportunities,
despite the current cyclical challenges the industry is facing. There will be many interesting inwestment
projects by public utilitses and enterprises in other sectors noted above, particularly in developing countries
and economies in transition, where the potential kong-term damands aré enormous. The question of whether
adequate fnancing can be found for these projects will have a ssgnificant impact on CCC's activities

Canadian companies with high-quality products, low costs and solid management expertise, all characteristics
common to COC's clents, stand to benefit significantly from demand in the global publes sactor market

COC Anfniual Beport 30022002 Credibility = Conhideéncd = Contracis



CAMADA'S TRADE OBJECTIVES

As Canada's export contracting agency, CCC supports Canada’s irade objectives by facilifating frade between
Canadian exparters, intluding special programs for small- and medivm-sized enterprises (SMES), and foreign
buyers. Regionally, CCC puts special gmphasis on maintaining superion rekations with thi United States and
athir countries of the proposed Fres Trade Area of the Americas (FTAAL

EXPORT ASSISTAMCE TO SMES
Prowiding support 1o SMES rermaing a policy prierity for the Gowernment of Canada. The CCC contribubes
directly 1o this overall government commitment by providing export-related assistance and advice to SMEs
and by facilitating socess 10 commercial sources of pre-shipment financing,

O the fotal of 1,971 firms accesang CCC's services in 2002-2003, B2 percent were SMEs, They use all
al the Corporalions enport contracting senaces and expertise, which can now be soquined o0 an “unbundled™
fee-forservice basis, (o allpw clients fo choose the senices most relevant 1o thesr busingss sifuation, The
Corporation has introduced a SME Rk Fund 1o support the higher level of performance risk that is often a
characteristic of small, less expenenced farms, Thi fund will be cxpanded in subSequent years.

Through its Progress Payment Program for pre-shipment financing, OCC prowided $50.4 millian of inberim
fimancing in fiscal 2002-2003. Since s creation in 1995, the PPP has facilitated more than $499 million
in export sales for Canadian SMES,

.5, ~CAMADW RELATIONS
Canada's trading relationship with the LS. remains of paramount importance, and securing and improving
access o this immense market s Canada’s number-one frade palicy priority,

QCC's sales fo the United States amounted f0 37797 millien in 2002-2003, represeniing B0 percent ol
its fatal business volisme,

In the post-September 11 ervironmant, CCC contributes significantly to the Gowernment of Canada’s pricrity
af working with the LIS, to address the sacunity resds of both countries, CCC plays a central aperational role
unider the 1956 DPSA between Canada and the Unibed States, which was established 1o ensune the mas
effective utilization of L5, and Canadian defence industrial capabilities, and the safety and well-being of
their crfizens.

Through its GSA Schedules Program, COC alsa provides suppoet to Canadian fems wanting 10 access the
central procurernent anm of the U5, fedecal povernment,

FREE TRADE AREA OF THE AMERICAS

The propased FTAA wauld encompass the 00 millien peaple of the Americas, who make up almost one Sixth
af thir world™s population, The region's combined GOP of approximately $17 trllion represents mone than
ane third of the world's economies activity, The FTAA will build on Canada™ free frade ties with the LS.,
Mexico, Chile and Costa Rica.

CCCs Market Opporiunities Development (MOD) group carried cul prodctive business development activities
in mdny countries in Latin America duning the fiscal year to develop customer relationships and identify
opportunities that will be developed over thi coming months. GCC's understanding of forgéign povermmaent
procurement procedures and its ability to emter into government-to-government arangements can often
simplify and accelesgbe the process of supplying customers’ nesds with Canadian products,
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NEW LEGISLATION FOR COC

I earky 2002
It was the Tirst fime

TEiE threse changes mnelud RO Charge Somimercell e

% and the changing competitive realmies of intermatonal markets

Gratedn S DOMIwWIRE aulnor MerCIdl ST IGn
s Hoard of Dereciors and Fresident
FEES FOR SERWVICE
In i1s fivesyaar Corporabe Flan for the years 20022003 through 20082007, COC made a cormm iiment 1o
e Fineve Tinancial self-sulfeci@mty in 15 Butingss outside (he Canada-L).5, DPFSA, while making aceess 1o ils
LEAICES more [hexinhe fof &xXporers
ed prcin ¢ and “unbundl its fradit il Prirmi G i

il 10 choose from a re FlEible meny of S&rices and (0 pa

he value they represent rather than sirictly on cost

: DPSA with the LS, wall ¢

BORROWING AUTHORITY

Thie Corporation has bidn grvin thi statulory povwsr 10 Bormow commércaally ug 1o 590 million, Curmintly, u




Howewer, the Corporation is now Se&ing an increasing project pipeline composed of major capital propects
Consequently, the Cofporalion requires mone fleability in accessing Dorrowing lines,

In general, the new bomowing autharty will enable CCC to mantain tirmely payrment standands and increase
its capacity for commercial fisk bo the advanisge of SMES.

IMPROVED CORPORATE GOVERMANCE

The pogitions of President and Chair of the Board were separated 1o modernize and strenglhen the
Corporation’s governance structure, providing a greater degree of Board independence and owersight. In
Mowsmber 2002, Mr. Alan R, Curlegh was appainied Chair

BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

Fior rany years, SO0 has worked in a wide varisty of counfries and industrial sectors, responding 1o buyers’
enquiries and suppliers’ réquests Tor adsrstance, During the past two years, the Corporation his taken a
more proacine approach 1o busingss development, by developing refationships and identifying cpportunities
in sEveral courtries’ markets and fangeied Sectors

Markets
UNITED STATES ACCESS TO U.5. GOVERNMENT
In 2002-2003, COC signed sales contracls warlth 5642, 7 rmillion with MARKETS

agencies of the U5, Departrant of Detense (U5, Dol

Procurement practices of the .S, Dol have shitted significantly in
wiys that are changing this market for its supphiers, Buildioenloperate
arrangements are becoming more common, &5 U5, Dol specifies
autcarme rather than activity. The use of private firms 85 prime
contractor or integrator is incréasing. Leasing has become more
prévalent, from tanker aircralt fo on-site Simulators, These Raciors
ngquire new indestnal relationships with LS. primé contracions and
may limit the ability of smaller firms to bid directly inlo mapor
programs, QU0 successfully proveded a contractual link in & number of
fuch trangaclions in J002-2003, On & non-Contractual basis, CCC
conducts assist dueditg, last year performing more than
&5 dudits valped at tver LSEZ 20 million

At the same time, budget structures are changing. The new Department
af Homeland Security will, ower time, subsume some of the funds
typically allothed to ather depanments, The rules under which the néw
depariment will progure g being developed, and CCC i working o
pasition rself &5 & conduit for Canadian companies by affering o
provide DP3&:Iike serices to those onganizations unfamiliar with the

Canadian supplicr base,

While these changes pose challenges 10 CCC and itS Supdloens, they aka
bring oppartunities, To ensure that COC 5 fully aware of the impact of
these changes, it continuees to participate in forums wihend paos st

and procwremen neborm arg discussed, QUG was invited 1o joan the Strategic Suppber Alliance, establshed
by the Defense Supply Center Richmond, The Alliance irmelwes 14 of the majer L5, suppliers to Dol and
mieels 1o discuss performance messurermnents that Dol will use, a5 well &% wpcoming changes to procureTint
methodalogy and how | might imaact suppliers
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CCC is also a member of the Canadian Jaint Defence Procurement Council, co-spansored by Canadian
Defence Industries Canada and Asrospace Industries Assaciation of Canada, where armang olher isues, the
impacts on Canadian industry of changies in U5, proturement strategy ant discussed.,

CCC has strengthensd s ongoing relatsonship with the U5, Delense Contract Management Agency (DCMAK
bath in Ottawa and Washington, Through a co-sponsored Global Managerment Council, issues of mutwal
concern are discussed and metrics established to improve averall organizational performance,

An agresment bitween NASA and COC was signed in the early 19608, based on the DPSA model, This
agreement wias renswed in 2002-2003 providing for discretanany use of COC a6 a prirne contractor o NASA,
Due e thes relationship, CCC has been included in over 90 percent of NASA'S commercial fransactions with
Canadian companies,

The U5, Cosst Guard (USCGE) kas awarded the prifmie contracior mle in ils USS1T-billich program kicwi
as Deepwater, to the Integrated Coast Guard Systems (I0G5) team of Lockheed MartinNorthrop Grurmeman,
Thiss acquisition aims te upgrade the USOG's assets, which will enhance its offshane swenillance capacity
and contribube 1o intreased U5, security. COC has becom the Canadian point of contact for opportunities
on Deepwater, Through the COC Web site, suppliers can register with the program as sub-contractors and
receive updates as to program requirernents and progress.,

U.S. GENERAL SERVICES ADMINISTRATION (GSA) SCHEDULES PROGRAM

The U5, General Services Adminisiration (GSA) is the central procurement arm of the U5, federal
Bovernement, respongibie for facilitating billions of dollars in purchases every year on behalf of LS, government
departments and agencies. Canadian companies can access this USE25-billion market by becoming &
qualified supplier through the GSA Schedules Program,

CCC has developed  bwo-phased program to allow firms o access this market. The first phase is intended
to support Canadian exporters applying for & GSA Schedule sward, The service includes submission advice
and sistance, peer review of submission by our Washingion-based consultants and advice related to GSA
discussions and pricing negotiations, Successful completion of Phase | will automatically enral 3 cormpany
in Phase 11,

The second phase is set up to help Canadian exporters to maximize selling opportunities once they have been
accepted into the GSA Schedules Program by providing business intelligence and marketing vehicles (trade
shiws, promotional material and activities, ete,). CCC entered inle partaership with the Canadian
Manutacturers and Exporters to educate Canadian exporters about the GSA program,

CCC has set an objective of helping 25 small Canadian exporters 1o conclude agreemients through the GSA
Schedubes Program in 2003-2004,
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LATEN AMERICA
In s Corporate Plan, CCL selected Ecuddor for the dévelopment of an “in-0ountry” program, Dased on ils

-

. can bring elficeency and transparency fo

ireiledmianl o A new Curlo arport &nd lacal infenest m how C

Bleghed relationships wilh fesderal

international ot umement, FoCused butingss diveloprmgnt effors haae o

state and city gowernrnents within that countny. Strategic allignces were signed with the cities of Guita

viding direct access to public prosurement

c& and Manta, solidifying these relationships and pro
[}

appartunities, Specific p s Phat have been icdentified from 8 muember %ty during the veae form Uhe

o seek out other needs, matching {hem with qual

10 i QRO ECES Tarwand &nd

PrOEram Additional resountes e DeEn ASSIgNED

L5 Tor this Sin-Couniry™

fed Canadaan supgliers

Qe countries i the nsgion ane being evaluaied o determanse an approprate lewel of proactivty, GO0 Iooks
at warious critéria including politscal and sconomic sscurity, procuremant planning and proceaass §oacific
Lecior inlerests and meihods of payrment. This is supported by anput and expertise Trom 1he Trade
COMImISSaner Sehnte and Expor Develodment Canada (EDC)

for pample, COCS value to the ferdign

Iry thie Dosmirncan R

was asked to assist the Water Authorty of the capital city to 50 A major propect. &

Memarandum of LUnderstanding was signed with the customer in the fall and already this effort has lad

subjected booa feasibility study

er praojects being sdentified, sourced

o

CCC = working on sirategic pregrarms in abher couniries that have the potential to lead to “in-couniry

programs and, through & mone robust presencs in the country, open daors 10 new opportunities for Canadian

g pnca]p |l ="

Oan Qizen

Ricardo Chincal




OTHER REGEDNS

In gfher regians of the world, OCC reésponds 1o needs sdentilied by buyers and selbers who Deligve that COCs
presence will lend conlidence and credibnlity to an internatsanal fransaction, Dunng 20022003, CEC was
suctessiul in signing contracts or contract amendments in Seven Afncan countries, mcluding Angala and
the Republic of South Afrca, Contract valee was approomately $34 million. Similady, COC's marketing
efforts contribufed 19 contracts from 10 European cowniries in 20022003 with & value of ouer %62 million,

and contracts m Asia of over T2 milleon,

EBUSINESS
Electronic commence of ¢Busingss s an integral part of CLLES strategy 10 better Serve 115 clients and grow

its Busindss, The Comporation has embarked o enitidtoees in thies areas

The L3, government is continuing ils rmdvement towand electronically
EBUSINESS LINKAGES baded procunement, For & number of yeded, COD has provided & giteway
ta fhis market through its Electranic Data Interchange (D1} capablity
In the mear ferm, this servce will expand from contrast award and
natiticaton 10 inclede inveicing and paymients fromm & larger nomber of
Luppleers, using QUL new compuler plationm, This SErvice i expecisd
o speed up the payrent process resulling in cost Savings and cash
Mg improwemants, COC will continug to offer capabilities to small
suppliers unable fo ivesest in their own stand-alone sysberms

In 2001, C0L partaercd with Industry Canada and Hyperiet, a privale
company, 10 establish SourceCAM, an e-rmarketplace that matches

Canadian prodects and sernces with business opporfunities posted by
domestss and fordign corporations and governmeénts, COC organizes U3, and Ewrdpean information febds
and provides advice and assistance 10 companies thal wish to bid on thess cpporfunifees

Canaduan companses werd mwarded rmoce than 200 contracts from apportundies posted on SourcelZAM in
calendar year J002, and of that number 209 contracts worth USE3ER million went thraugh COL. Some

1,572 exparters vsed COLS opportunily maching sennces in 2002- 2003,

CLC b working with other eapoet agencies such & EDC, the Busingss Development Eank of Canada (EDC)
and the Degariment af Foresgn Atfaars and Indernational Trade (DFEAIT], o Sivelop an integrated international
elecinnic commense plationm, This plattosm would simplify clicnls” aocess 1o a wide range of seraces
from departments and agencies, contistent with the Government of Canada’s Government On-Line (0L

inilEalive,

INTERNATIONAL PROCUREMENT SERVICES

CCC Anmusl Begort 2002-2003 Credibilily « Conlidédcs = Conbracis
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CANADA INVESTMENT FUND FOR AFRICA

The Canada Investment Fund for Africa is a key part of Canada’s commitment to grealer socic-economic
dewelapment in Africa and Canada’s responsa to 8 Consansus among international organizations about the
important robe pevate sector funds can play to help developing countries participate in the global economy.

The Canadian Government announced its intention of sponsaring a pubdic-private Canada Investment Fund
for Africa ta provide risk capital for private irvestments in Africa that generate growth. The Fund will have
a minimwm targeted aggregate capital of $200 million, of which %100 millkon would be contributed by the
Gowarnment and the balance by private sector investors.

The Department of Foreign Affairs and International Trade appointed CCC to select a qualified fund manages,
who will be respansible for directing the Fund's activities.

The Fund will generate significant direct and indirect benefits for Africa and Canada through new market
opportunities for Canadian firms and investors, and enhanced strategic linkages betwesn Canadian and
African organizations.

COC will leverage the contacts and knowledge gained through this process to betler assist Canadian companies
in Africa.

Sectors

AERDSPACE AND DEFENCE

Global sales by COC in the Asrcspace and Defence group amounted to $119 millken in 2002-2003.
Principally with the U5, Del, CCC is under contract with the dominant players in Canada's asrospace
zacior. While commercial aviation was hard hit following September 11, spending on military aviation
assets has remained relatively constant. In fact, thare were slight increases in readiness spending priod o
Ohperation Iragi Freedom. Cross-border efficiency concerns also confributed to CCC's apfospace salas in
20102-20:03, as a CCC-brokered transaction resulted in an order from U.5. Customs.

CCC anticipates security Issues such as border control, surveillance and interdiction will increase the demand
for goods and services more typically found in the military domain. Defence prodects are now being procuned
and used by a wider range of government buyers than previcusly. For example, federal, state and municipal
first respondars have all procured equipment designed to detect and prodect from chemical and biological
falbout.

CCC's Aerospace and Defence group has developed a number of international projects outside the LS.,
through locused cross-marketing and business development efforts. Products include aircralt engine test celis
for Germarry, undenwater salvage rescue vehicles for (taly. bomb disposal suits for Germany. airport equipment
for the Conga and others.

I late 2002-2003 General Motors Canada sodd its Light Armored Yehicles (LAVs) production facility in
Londan, Ontarss to General Dynamics Land Systems (GDLS) of the U.5. For almost two decades, CCC has
participated in the evolution of the LAY into the world's premier peacekseping vehicle and in its contribution
1o & rewolution in military mobility, as wheeled vehiclss challenged trachked vehicles across a range of wuses.
General Moftors Canada receiwed an Export Award in 2002 in recognition of this long-term product
dewvalopment program.
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In sales terms, the LAV businéss is typically made up of & small number of very lage contracts. In 2002
2003, CCC achigved LAY sales ol 45 million compared (o 8 tarpet Dusimess valurme ol $200 mallion,
caused by procurement delays trigeered By eobnts in the Middle Exst, In conjunction with GDLS, COC &

currently invahned in the pursweit of ather sales, including a polenfial expansion of the ongaing Ausiralian

[ AR TaArT,

INTERMATIONAL COHAMERCIAL BUSINESS

CCC's International Cormmercial Business (ICB) portfolio congists of modest=sized supply and construction

IreEsEmEn1s.,

supplies, transpoctation, toursm, sducation, passpors and food products, I spite of Slow worldwide sconamic
conditions, 31 countries bought through COE, bringing toflal new ICE orders o 2244 millon in 2002-
2003, The Corporation and is suppliers hawe a substantial pipeling of prapects to be brought 1o confract
in 20032004

EMGINEERING, FROCUREMENT AND COMNSTRULCTION

Engineering. Procurement and Contfruction (EPC) projects are integrated, complex, and typucally mulg

millsan dollar propects that may be of Strafeges importan

2 e host country, They ang found in 8 varnety

of seciors such as energy, transportation, telecommunications, hausing and infrastructure

Canadian exparbers are particularly strong an the senvice side al the industry, especiglly in enginesring

consulting. architestune and projec

! management. CCC is being aked fo participate in mone EPC projects

bescause of the value it brings, particularly in berms of it y 1o simplily and expedife decisan-making
processes, It has the capacity to structure $ole Source arrangarents and form the broadly based consortia

that ane aften reguired to undertake these propects and 10 5SSt in putting together the requined financing
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In 2002, OOC was awarded a BO00-million contract ta build an sirport in Quita, Ecusdar, subject o financing
and other governmental approvals, The project would be undertaken by & leading Canadian airport
develapment firm together with other Canadian and inlernadtional Companies,

The Cofporaton operalies under special guedelings that apply 10 overseds consfrucinn or “capilal™ propcts.
CCC is confident m its ability 1o effectively mitigate and manages the risks associated with such projects, based
on past perfoemance and the policy framewcork it has in place,

INTERNAL RESOURCES

CCC understands that an organizafson’s ability (o respond to ks clents’ needs depends Largely an the shills
and kndwledge of ifs employees, The Corparation has achiiwed its Succlstes bacause of its people, who ang
infgviting and determingd to find solutions that lead 1o export contriacts,

QOC is commatied bo créating an environment whene continuous bearming is encouraged. Thi growing desmand
for sophisticated risk managernent skills and the need to take atvantage o new technoiogees dre facions that
hawie made learning and developmient & corporate prionity, The Corporation’s appraach to learming inchsdes
the sharing of best practices amang stalf, infer-departmental assignments and specialized training,

QLG introduced the concept of leaming plans a5 a pilot project. Learning plans will identity learning activities
1o e purdued by individuals in suppart of their learning and career déevelopment, Preliminary work was
undertakin o the concipt of & canger map thal will identity the skills and competéncais of the diffenent jobs
waerthien IME{IW&',IHF. T 'i'|r|3'1"lg'||"| ol I'l"l.ﬂl‘lﬂgfn‘uﬁr'lt'f- commitment bo pﬂ::mdl:- I}fﬁptﬂ}'ﬁes with ihe nppu-quml;y
fo learn & Shawn in the nember of tlalnlng ﬂaﬁ Dn TR, each ¢mp|nﬂ¢ had almost 11 ﬂaﬁ al Erasnang,
companed to the corporate obpecting of T days,

Asrted by 1S new Specirum computer platform, COG will be introducing mmproved performance measuement
iocls that will furthér caatribube to the lEaming culture within the Corporation.

SPECTR

LM
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Department of Foreign Affairs and International Tradge (DFAIT) defines Conporate Sockal Responsi bility
{CSR) as “the way a company balances its economic, ervironmental and social objectives while at the same
time addressing stakehalder expectations and enhancing shareholder value.”

CCC has developed a CSR plan and is woeking closely with government officials to ensure that its CSR
initiatives address the Gowernment of Canada's valuses and commitments, consistent with the Corporaton's
mandate.

In the initial phase, CCC will concentrate an elaborating its enveonmental revies framework and its role in
addressing international bribery and corrupiion Esues,

EMVIROMMENT

CCC's Board of Directors has adepted an interim envisonmental review framework, covering the Corporation's
imvolvement in gverseas construction projects. Al present, these activities are not regulated under the
Canadian Environmantal Assessment Act. Mevertheless, COC has woluntarily sought the advice of the Canadian
Environmental Assecemant Agency in conducting its ervironmental assescment process.

Following amendmenis to the Canadian Environmeniad Assessmant Act, CCC will be working with the
Canadian Environmentad Assessment Agency and cther governmental organizations to develop a satisfactony
regulatory framework to fulfil its envirenmental responsibilities while continuing to serve the Canadian
axporting Community.

Paml Meienay
Duieciof, Bussness
Prociss Improvements

COG Anfnual Report 2002-2002 Credibility - Conlidencd = Contracis

5



'F.‘.r-uj # Dacgreaull

Nak Sunch

ETHICS WORKING CAPITAL FOR

The incréasing globalization of business activitoes hias brought Dribery EXPORT PROJECTS
and cormuption to the foredrant of SR isSues,

QLG has complisd with Canada's Corrupinan of Faragn Fublic Cffcwails
Al By insering & clause in all i centracts with Canadaan suppliers
prahibiting the bribery and corruption of public afficials in Canada
and abigad. The Comporatean's godl i 1o provide Benelits 1o both buers
and sellers and ultimately te improve the infernational trade

T Iroan sk,

CCC was approached last waar By Transparency |ntarnational Canada
o play an active ralé n raising the awaneness of the Act amang s
clignts and the Canadian exporier community in general. GO0
management 15 cumrently examining the rale the Conporation could play
in advancing the isswe of ransparéncy in international public

proCurerment,

SOCIAL INVOLYEMENT

CCC is actively invalved in 8 number of commuenity initidses including
the Unied Way Campaign, the Untand Hear and Strake Foundation’s
Big Bike tor Stroke, Computers for Schodls, the Assaciation
Internateanale des Etudiants &n SCiences Ecomamiques ef Lomerciales
[AIESEC) and Chrigtmas donatians 1o familiss in need, &% well as

interaships and student hiring
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

“In serving the public interest, Crown corporations have greater managerial autonomy then the rest of
governmeent in order that they may operate in a commercial manner.™

Government of Canada, Corporate Governance in Crown Corporations and Qther Public
Enterprisas: Guidelines

Gowernance in Crown corporations must take info account the fact that these institutions have a dua! purposa
af delivering important public programs and managing them within a commercial context. CCC operates
under the Canadian Commercial Corporation Act (the CCC Act] and under Part X of the Financial
Adminisfration Act (FAAR), which outlines the contral and accountability framework for federal Crown
corporations. Fundamental to this framewncel is the annual development and approval by the Government
af a five-year Corporate Plan and related bosrowing and operational plans.

The Government has established guidelines in its publication entitled Corporate Governance in Crown
Corporations ang Cther Fublie Enterprizes, which smphasiza the Board of Directors” responsibilithes in the
areas of stewardship, working with management and effective board functioning. It recommends that each
Crown corporation report on its corporate governance practices in its annual report.

BOARD MEMBDERSHIF
Curirg 2002, CCC's Board was expanded from eqght fo ten members by the addition of the Corporation’s first
independent Chair and one additional member. Mames and affilistions of the Directors are found on page 48.

In early 2002, Parfiament passed an amendment to the OOC Act to separate the functiens of President and
Board Chair to strengthen the Corporation’s gowernance; previously, the President carried out bath functions.
On Movember 12, 2002, the Minster respensibde for COC, the Honourable Pierra Pettigrew, Minister for
Imternational Trade, announced the appointment of Alan R. Curlesgh as Chair of the Beasd, for a three-year term.

The appointmant was made after identifying a position profile and consultation with Board members,
siakeholders and ather thind party references. Prioe to his appointment. Mr. Curleigh served as Executive Vice-
President, Corporate Secretary and member of the board of TESSAG KSH Ltd., a capital projects engineering
contracting firm based im Montreal. He has been a member of the Board of Directers of the Canadian
Manufacturers and Exporters since 1996, acting as its Chair from 1999 to 2001, and so brings extensive
axperiance of egporting issues and knowledpe of the community to his rele a1 COC.

In addition, Mr. Peter M. Wright was appointed fo the Board of Directors for a three-year term. Mr. Wright
is. Chairman of the law firm Patterson Falmer. His appaintment provides the Corporation with Board
representation from the Atlantic prowinces and, like Mr. Curleigh's appointmant, followed completion of a
position prefile and consultation with the Corporation regarding particular skills that would be useful at this
stage of its evalution.

All new members of the Board are provided with conflict of interest guidelines by the Privy Council Office

as well as orientation material and briefings. Three Board members attended training saminars for pulblic
sector directors during the year.

CCC Annual Report 2002-2003  Credibility - Cenlidence - Contracis

zZT



MEETINGS AND EXPENSES
The Board met thres tires in person and five times by conferénce call 10 carry out 15 rédpondibilities, Ta
assist it, the Board used three standing committess:

+ an Audit Committes, consisting of three external directors, The committes met twice in persen and

ance by conferance call during the year to review the plans for the axtemal sudit and & multi-pesr
irternal sudit plan, and 1o réview and approve the Corparation’s financisl statements and presentation
ol datd in its annual eport. M Lowis-Mane Bedileu assumed the Chair of the Audit Commities in
October 2002,

& Compensation Cornmittes consisting of two external dirsctors, The committes met twice during the
fiscal yesr 10 st the Pretident's obpecies, svaluate his performance and recommend compensation
adjustments under guidelines etablished by the Privy Council Office; and

& Cornmities of the Whole, which met gach time the Boand was convened, This commities, chaired by
an external director, helped provide effective separation of the functians of President and Board Chair,
by congidering all substantve matters on the Board's agenda. I8 decisions were rafified by the Board
under fhe Préssdent's chairmanship without further debate, With the appainiment of & new Chair, this
cormmities will no longer be required.

The Board's expenses in 2002-2003, including annual refainers and honoraria af rates approved by the
government, a5 wiell a5 travel and megting costs, totalled 393,000, The expenses increased by $39,000 over
2001-2002 duwe to a number of factors: the addition of a part-tirme Chair and one Board member; holding
ane Board mesting in Vancouver; and training costs for three direcions.

CORPORATE GOVERMANCE GUIDELINES

Fallawing the appointment of an independent Chadr, the Board began a review of the Corparation's by-laws
and Board practeces against the povernment’s corporabe governance guidelines and other curnent authonties.
While this review will be completed only in 2003-2004, the Board believes it has fulfilled it5 key
respansibilities as outlned in the pavernment’s Coarporale povernance guidelmnes, including the following:
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 Stewsidship of the Corporaton’s responsibilities, including establishing the Cofparataon’s strategic

direction through a fve-year Corporate Plan (1o implement the renewed public policy mandate given by
the Parliament of Canada o the Corporation in early 2002); quarterly réview of the Corparation’s
business risks and financial pasition; & comprehensive program of external and inbernal audits; and
reparting 1o the Minister and Fadliament on the Corparation’s performance through the annual report.

The Corporate Plan 2002-2007, submitted Tor povernment approval in February 2002, covered the
Corporation™s objectives, sirategies, service siandards and comrunacatan plans, as well as budgets
and a borowing plan for the coming yiar. A Sumenary of the approved plan was forwarded for tabling
by the Minister, as required under the FAA,

Working with managerment, while maintéining an independent perspective, Separation aof the pasitions
af Presadent and Board Chair has condaderably stigngthensd the boands independence, OCCS Board and
managerment have established an effective working relationship in which the Board provides advice,
approves strabegic projects and issues, and monitors and evaluates performance and policies.

Functigning af the Board, including participating in Board renewal, orientation, education and review
al its governance processes, &% noted above,
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Finances

1. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The 2002-2003 fiscal year was marked by a number of pasitive financial highlights. The Corporation had
recond-lavel gross revenues of $1.2 billion, exceeded its target for fee-for-service revenues in the fiest year
of implementation, and produced a small surplus. Given these results, the Corporation enters the 2003-2004
fizcal year canfident in its ability to achieve its Corporate Plam goal of financial self-sufficiency in its non-
DFSA programs by 2006-2007. Below is a more detailed discussion of the Corporation’s 2002-2003

aperating highlights.

Income Statement Discussion
SUMMARY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Commercial trading transactons. $1.242.1 $1.200.5
Gross mangin 2.0 5.3

Mt revenues 6.6 a2

Todal expenses 232 21.5
Parliamentary appropeiations 166 158

Commerncial trading transactions s the aggregate of the Corporation's billings from outstanding signed
contracts, fees-for-semvice and income generated from the discounting of exporters’ receivables. The Conporate
Plan projects that commercial trading transactions will decrease to approaimately $1.05 billion in 2003-
2004, reflecting lower sales orders signed in 2002-2003. However, they are projected o rise again to
$£1.2 billion and beyond, post 2004- 2005,

The Corporation has seen generally posidive response to its implementation of a fea-for-senice policy. The yvear-
ower-year increase in fees of $2.422 million or 52 percent was generated primarily firom a number of large
exporting projects at the pre-contract stage, reflecting the value placed by exporters on COC's services and
expertise in developing successiul projects. The increased e of O0C's recenable discounting serice by exporers
resulted in & year-over-year incraase in other income of $208,000 or 41 percent. The gross mangin & expected
to continue growing as the fee-for-service regime i applied fo more of the Corporation's export transactuons.

Met revenue (the total of gross margin, net interest income, and gain (loss) on foraign exchanga),
hawever, actually decreased by $1.6 million froem last year. Lower interest rates affected the amount of

interest income generated on the
: FORERH EXCAUNGE TRANSLETION CINS M LOSSES COMPARED
Corporation’s surplus cash holdingS o e couioun DOLLAR RELTICRIMSP T THE L3, DL

{2003 - %1.36% million, 2002 -
£1.706 millign). The increase in the
walue of the Canadian dollar against the
LS. dollar resufted in a foreign exchange
loss of $2.772 million in 2002-2003
comparsd to & foreign exchange gain of
£434 000 in 2001-2002, when the
Coeparation's U5, assets were convertad

| a8
3 1999 00 2001 2002 2003 '\.“‘ﬁ“
to Canadian dollar equivalents. impact

Ta minimize foreign exchanga gains of losses in the future, the Corporation plans to implement a new
treasury management policy of bomowing o meet its U5, dodlar requirements and converting its surplus LS.
dallars into Canadian dollars for investment purposes. This policy change also takes advantage of the
currently pasitive interest rate spread betwesn Canadian and U.5. rates. Consequently, the Corporate Plan
projects that the Corporation’s net revenues will e $6.529 million in 2003-2004 as the anticipated increasa
in interest income will be offset by more extensive use of its borrowing facility.
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Totsl expenses increased by $1.6 million yeargverpear, a5 adminisirative expenses. increased by 1.8 million,
offset by a $230,000 decling in additional contract and related costs, Administrative expenses nase by
$1.8 million from kst wear, due to the fallowing majer iberms:

® apprawirabely $600,000 in amortization expense, reflecting the first years usage of the Corparation's
e cormputer System;

® an increase of appromately $430,000 in charges by Public Works and Government Services [PWGSC)
T servitis nendinsd on behalf of CCC, Tor apact projscts whisnt the Corpdration has billed an equivabint
T For Sirvice to the client; and

* approximately 850,000 in increased marketing and prometion, and human resaurces initiatives
consistent with last year's Corporate Plan strategy, as well as increased workforce compensation
associaled with the Corporation’s collective bargaining agreement. A mone detailed brealodown of the
Corporation’s administrativg expenditures is provided in note 14 of the Financial Statements,

The Corporation clasely monitors its administrative

expenditures, From 199E. 1994 hEUﬂEEDﬂI.tﬁHI ADMNATRATIFE EXPERDITLES COMPLRES ¥D OOMARERCIAL TRADNG REVEWLEL
administrative spending increéased by 59 percent, = —
niarly matching on & percentage basis the 57 percant
& in commércial rading transaction rivenise during
the same period, 0F the neady §7.74 millign increase
in administrative expanses, more than a third, or
spproximately $2.85 million, was from increased
paymenis toe PWGESE for services to suppost COC's o
increated warklosd activity. The rémaining 34,89

million mcréasd was from inwestments in infrastrustung tm ﬁ H m ﬁ
and peaple that are enabling the Corporation to mone

proactively develop its bukingss:

4 Balizns)

= The purchase of a new computer systemn (0 improve reporting across corporate functions and suppart
future eBusiness initistives

® |ncrearsad marketing to suppor the objectieg of divensitying the markets OO serves, by raising awaraness
amang suppliers and buyers of the services it offers

= |mpbermentation of 3 compensation system for staff, additicnal emplayeses, and higher collective
bargaining contract costs,

In 2002-2003, the Corporation received an increase in its appropriation from Parliamaent for managarmant
and staff compensation, The Corporation expects to receive $15.2 million in apprapriations in 2003-2004,

Balance Sheet Discussion

SUMMARY FINARCIAL POSITION

$millioss) 02003 0LaO2
Total assets $412.3 $674.8

Equity of Canada 40,8 40,7

Total assets decreased to $419.3 million at March 31, 2002, down $255.5 millian from the prévious fiscal
year-gnd, This decrease reflects two major items: release of monies being held on behalf of foreign
povbrniments fof approamately $102 rmillion; and & change in the size and mixtune of the Corporation's
parthalio of uncompleted contracts, with lower advances and progress payment activity than last yeas, The
Corporate Plan anticipates a further decling in ass5ets to 3383 million neat yeas,
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WORKIMNG CAPITAL
A5 an irternational trade intermiediany, COC for the most part offsets its trading-related assets with matching
liabilities, Accounts receivable from foreign customers and progress payments 1o Canadian exporiens on the
aiats fide of the balance sheat are Largely offsel by scoounts pavable and socrudd liabdlties bo Canadian
exporters a5 well as progress payments from foreign customers.

In certain programs, howensr (such a5 sales under the DFSA), the Corporation does have a need for other
sources of working capital to brodge fiming differences Detwesn its payables and receivables, COCS new
siatulony power 1o borrow commercially up b S90 mallion (zurently imited by Minister of Finance authorty
ta 40 millioa] will prowde it with useful Bexibility 1 managi such vanationg, The Corporalion no nge
barrgws from the Government of Canada, a5 it did in the prévieus yvear, with £10 million sutstanding a3 of
March 31, 2002, It repaid this armount early in the fiscal year 2002-2003,

Coos capital 3556ts increased on & net G POSTFOLID OF RNCOPLETED COMTRACTS COMARSED T EQLITY

basis by $436,000 in 2002.2003, This
was the result af investment in the
Corporation's new infarmation fechnology

Portoof

Uncompisied
Sysiem as it was put into operational use. Confracts
The Corparation’s provision for additional E ?
contract and related costs declined by - | 3 Equily

$1.9 million, due primarily 9 the

rissalutlion of ani propect. 1958 1989 2000 2000
1998 00 2001 OF N0

The equity of Ganada in CCG remained essentially the same, ot approximately £41 million, The Corporation
believes it has sufficient capital to support the nommal commencial risks inherent in its confract portfalio of
uncormipleted contracts of 32,0 billian, The Corporation applies a comprehensig Risk Managemen! Framewon
o support this position, acknowledging hat, a5 an agent Crown corporation, all obligatians of thi Corporaton
are obligations of thie Gavernment of Canada,

Changes in Cash Flow Discussion
SUMMARY CASH FLOW

Operating activities $179.1) $130
Irvissling activitios 100.9 11.4
Fimancing activitics 20,0 20.5

As descrived in the Corporations Cash Flow statement, cash and short-term depasits &t March 31, 2003,
declinegd signilicantly compared 1o the previous year, This was the resull of three main sess of activities,

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash provided by cperating activitbes contribuled $179.1 millien in negative cash flow, down from a positive
$13.0 millign in 2001-2002. In that year, the Corporation received significant sums fram certain forgign
custormers for investment until called wpon 10 service export propects. These sums were refurned 1o the
foreign customers this year, Nosmally, COC's annual cash Tlow from operations is negative, because of the
payment palicies in its Defense Production Sharing Arargement (DPSA) business. Under this program, the
Corporation pays Canadisn exporters in 30 dags fom receipl of imgice irespecive of when it recdives
payment fram the LS. Government,

INYESTING ACTIVITIES
The profile of cash provided by investing activities wis Similarly infleenoed by LErge imvestments on behall
of forsign customers in 2001-2002, with 3 rederplon of securities in 20002-20032 3 the request of the
forengn custosmirs, The infeest generatied from thise monms scerutd 1o the forndign parties” benefil, The
Corporation also spent $1.0 millien in the acquisition of its new information technology system.
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FIMANCING ACTIVITIES
Caszh provided by financing activities amounted to 20,0 million for the year anded March 31, 2003,
cornpaned te $20.5 million for 2002, Although the amount was the same yesr.over-year, This occurred for
quite difterent reagons. In the year gnding March 21, 2001, the Goserament of Canada pravided a
$10-millian loan io the Corporation. The fellowing year, the Government decided to strengthen the
Corporation’s financial position and provided increased operating appropriations and a capital infusion
folbowing 1he repayment of the lean,

Comparison with 2002-2003 to 2006-2007 Corporate Plan

INCOME STATEMEMT

The Conporation exseedad (15 commencial irading fransaction revenue target of £1.1 ballion by $124 millisa,
&5 more deliveries were made by Canadian exporters than projected. As mentioned sarler, the Corporation
surpEssed it 55.4-million targed for fes-forservice revenpes. penerating $7.1 million in s first year of
impbernentation, This led 10 8 positive variance in 1S gross margin results, MNet intenest revenue results
were greater than planned, a8 manapement was cautions in the ulilization of its new commeneial bamawing
fatility, thus msfamizing inbirest ¢hamges. Unfortunatiely, the Corporation pasted a signifcant focengn exchange
franslation loss, due to the rapid appreciation of the Canadian dollar vis-d-vis the U.5. dallar, This was not
foreseen at the time of developrment of the 2002.2003 Corporate Plan,

Acditiona) contract and nelaed costs. excesded the sopected bevel [based on historical frends) by 730,000,
reflecting ome contract dispute. Administrative expendiiures were greater than planned, gien higher than
inpichid vl of PWGESE serices and a5 stalf recenid incentee payment plan swards, Amortzation charges
were also higher than budget as approximately 31 million more was spent on the compuler system’s
configuration than orginally planmed,

BALANCE SHEET AND CASH FLOW

The Corporation's tolal assets wene slightly greater than planned (5419 million ve, S357 million) dise io
changet in the Corporation's confract partfalio and greated receivables from fereign clients, 8% of
Marzh 31, 2003, The Corporation had a lower cash pasition than planned, as a result of vanances in payment
flows in its operating activities. Notwithstanding this negative impact, the Corporation was able to minimize
BCoess 10 its operaling ling of credil compared 1o budget, 85 @ resull of careful cash management,

Looking Ahead Five Years

QCCs Corporate Plan far 2003-2004 to 20072008 weatifies thi abjéctives and strategies the Corparation
will purswe bo fulfil its mandate of facilitating trade, COC will continue to work fowands its strategic goal of
becoming financially self-sufficeent in its non-DFSA programas. For 2003-2004, the Corporaticn has developed
& fee-forservice tanget of $6.0 million, Although this tamget was significanily swipassed this year, il was
established Defore (he Current resuits wers svaikable,

I Fespinse B & growing numbis of companies asking for CCC'S suppart for mdne compli propets with an
everseas construction companent, COC is increasing its focus in this anea. A shilk toward these propects will
hiree & positive impact on the Conporation’s finances because they imalve extensive pre-contract work, which
under the Corporation's fee-forservice policy is chargeable as the work is performed,

The Corparation's tolal assets and labilites ane expecied to decling from $419 mallion to $383 million
(assats) and froem $379 million to 5341 rmallion (abilities) dug to the changing mistune of thi Corporatson's
contract partfolio even though the size of the portfodic will remain the same. The Corporation's cash position
i propected to increase to $53 million next year dug to improving contract payment flow in its operating
Acinilies,
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Met income is planned at 3154000, sbout $50,000 higher than 2002-2003, a5 increased rinenues from
fees and interesy income ol fet incregses in interes] expense and adminisirative eapenditures,

Five-Year Historical REView For the vear ended March 31 [in thausands of dallars)

2

Spvenues | i 200y

Commecial trading

fransactions 790,688 o901, 465 403 hEg 1,209,524 1.242, 149
Inberest incomss,

net of intenest experse 1,680 2,258 3,445 217 1,3E8
Foraign axchangs gain (loss) 1,040 {728} 1,855 434 (2,772}
Pariamentary appropeiations 10,443 12,548 13,865 15,831 16,631

Cost of commercial
trading fransactions TEBR, 709 BO7 12 Q89,218 1,204,227 1,234,117
Additienal confract and
melated costs:
Additional contract costs 1,057 3,345 2878 397 1,990
Liegal fees and other costs 293 218 155 2.148 ans
Adminishrative aopenses:
Sarices provided by
Public Works and
Gowernment Senvices
Canada 3,083 3,700 4,158 5,507 5937
Other admanisirative expenses 10,027 10,363 14,553 13,500 14,917
et resulls of operadions &80 191 1,783 2,509 107

2. RISK MANAGEMENT
Grven its mandate 1o facilitate intematonal trade and the commercial emvirpnment in which it operates, CCG
1% Suboect o & wide variety of risks and uncerainties, both external and intermal 05 the Corporation,

CCC has a comprehensive Risk Managemen? Framework that encompasses a number of risk factors that
the Corporation Faces in its day-ta=day operations. The extent of the Corporation™s ability to embrace thess
risks is determinged by its risk tolerance policy, which s &t by the Board of Direclors. In establishing the
Corporation’s risk tolerance policy, the Board takes into accouwnt the Corporation’s public policy mandabe amnd
fimancial risguenermenis,

External Risks
A5 noted abowe in the review of Operations, the Conparation”s Sales praspects ang subject to prevailing
conditions in international economes and financial markets, and in particular to those factors influencing
public procurément,

Canadean sconomic conditions, including the sachange rate, influgnce the competitneg posation of Canadian
exporters and thus the demand for COC's services. Intengst rabes and crédit conditions affect the Corporation's
cveradll rish exposure &5 well, via the balance sheet health of Canadian capeeters, |n 2002-2003, the rising
Canadian dollar decreased the reporting sine of the Conporation”s a5sets and labilities, of which a significant
portion criginate in U3, dollars. Changes in interest rates in both Canada and the L1353, also impact COG's
{reasury operations, described balaw.
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Internal Risks

The Corporation has recognized that these are a number of internal factors and policias that can impact the
effectiveness of its operations and, ultimatedy, its capacity to respond to the needs of its clients. Kay risk
areas include market awarensss and stakeholder relations, pricing, persennel, technology and information
gystems, and organizational structure and wvalwes. Regular monitoring of these rishs eccurs through the
Corporation's managemant struciure and interactions with its Boaard, and thraugh a comprehansive corporate
planning process.

Increased awaraness of the Corporation among clients, new and old, s key to increased international trade
facilitation by the Corporation, and to support the new fee-for-service policy. It is being delivered through
increased funding of marketing and promotion activitees, Positive relations with stakeholders are encouraged
and manitared through CCOC's management committes structune,

The intreduction of a fee-foe-service policy successfully generated significant income growth in ils first vear,
and to ensure the Corporation's revanue flow is not at risk, the policy will be reviewad naxt year to ensure
it continues to adapt to market conditions.

The Carporation increased its training resources 5o employees will receive ongoing training in internatianal
trade with particular focus on contract structuring, negotiation, and management. COC's new information
technobogy system will improwe the Corporation's business efficiency and enable more eBusiness, A long-
term technelogy development plan is being developed to ensura that the proper level of funding & maintained
and to minimize any disruption to the existing work environment.

The Corparation has a number of policies and procedures in place, as well as a long-term internal audit
plan, to identify and comect internal control weaknesses and systems deficiencies, cowening the aneas of
human resources, technology, and other crganizational factors.

Transaction Risks

The Corporation is sensitive to the need to protect taxpayers by effectively mitigating and managing risk in
its business transactions, spacifically its export contracts and ather financial activities. A measure of its
success may be seen in the performance target “Additional contract costs as a parcentage of business
volumes” on page 13.

CONTRACT HESK

As CCC is an organization that signs and takes responsibility for about %1 billion in export contracts each
year, contract risk ks a critical concarn for the Corporation. C©OC takes a proactive role in the development
af the foreign contract and uses the contract negofiating process to mitigate risk. CCC staff assesses the
international transaction as a whole and identifies the roles and responsibilities needed for successiul
completion of the project, and works with the buyer and the Canadian supplier to secure a mutually beneficial
ocontract.

Amang the risk mitigation issues that CCC addrassas in the contract are: timing of foreign payment flows
to exporter production cash flows, location and basis of acceptance of the goods or sarvices, location and
basis for dispute resolution, and timing of foreign party contraciual obligations versus the exporter’s, OCC
passes an the oligations of the foreign conftract to the Canadian supplier wia a back-to-bach matching
domestic contract.
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PERFORMANCE RISH
Perforrmamnce risk is the risk that the Corporation's supplier or suppliers (or the “exporier™) may il to supply
goods and services to the foreign buyer consistent with the terms and conditions of the contract,  Prior to
entéring into such contracts, the Corporation conducts an extensie due diligence review of the sxponier's
managerial, technical and financial capability and, &5 described abowe, the foreign contract.

In the case of DP3A prajects and some others, this assessment i carried out on behalf of the Coporation
by Public Works and Government Services Canads (PWGEC), Depending upon the results of this review, the
Corporation may requing additional asurance such a5 performance securities andfor contract modifications,
If requinied, COC may also facilitate cash flow imarovement for the exporter thraugh a financial institution,

FOREIGM CREDIT RISK

Fargign credit fisk is the risk that the foreign party will not hoaour i15 oblgation 10 pay for the poods and’or
serdices under the contract, The Corporation has a foreign credit risk pdlicy that determines the amownt and
extent boowhich it will entertain this risk on its own account. Specifically, i takes a Triple A-rated credit risk
of foareign governmients and cormmercial parties. and acoepts commiercial securities to back up customers”
payment obligations where the credit rating is less, unbess the Board has prowided an exception. In all
otber cases, the foreign credi risk & the respongibility of the axporter, who often uses the financing and
irsirance senaces of Export Developrent Canada (EDC),

FOREMGN EXCHANGE RISK

Forgign exchange risk s the sk that the fongign curency under the contract fluctuates negatively against
the Canadian dallar ower the tarm of the contract. 17 is the Corporation’s policy to pass through this risk to
the Canadian exparter. The Corporation has entersd intd 8 partnership with the Tornts-Dominion Bank fo
affer foresgn exchange services bo exporiers under its confracts &l favourable rates,

Implementation Risks

Followirg confract signing, the Comparation actrvely monitors and manages the risks associabed with transactions
poet-commitrment to ensune that seues ane identified and addrested as aarly &% posible. During 2002- 2003,
the Corporations internal auditor underfioak & comprebensive review of post-contract avangement pracioes,
palicies and organization, Follow-up dEtlion will Be faken 1o respond 10 issues raised, which will give rise (o
certain changes in internal management processes to impove efficiencies. Where transactions are evaluated
a% & probable ket situstion, a team of employess from Operations, Financial Risk Aralysis Senvices and Legal
Servicks i forrmid 1o onganize action plans 1o mitigate 105% 1o the extent possible,

Allocation of Responsibilities
To praperly assess Lhe sk inherent in each internalonal trade transaction, the fullowing groups within the
Corporation have been allocated responsibility for cenain categories of risk:

110peratians i responsible for evaluating and assessing the suppliers techrical and managenial capability,
and lor assessing, developing and signing contracts

2IFinancial Risk Analysis Services s responsible for evaluating and assssting the supplers financial
capability, project cash fow, Torsign crisdit sk and foreign exchange risk

3ilegal Services unit is responsible for evaluating and asessing contractual rigk,

Each individual in these groups has & delegated approval autharity based on relevant epertise and expenancs,

With some exceptiong, sach transaction requires the approval of all theee groups.  Significant transactions
that pode special righ, such a5 overseas construction projects, require Board of Directors” appeaval,

CCC Annual Report 2002-2003  Credibility - Conlidence - Contracis

L



The Corporation’s Policy and Planning Linit is resporsible to assist Operations to ensure a1l trade fransactions
adhere to export permit requirerments, Government of Canada trade sanctions, “capital” project guidelines
(Boverning overseds construction prajects), emdronmental and Corporate Social Responsibality nsquimements.

Other Business Risks

In addition to rsk related to specific export transactions, the Conparation is exposed 10 risks related o its
corporate financial or treasury cperations. These include the risk of financial loss ariging from movemnents
in interest and foreign exchange ralés, approprigteness of the investment instruments and the financial
institutions holding the Corporation’s mongy, a5 well as (liguidity) risk of insufficient funds (o address
corporate obligations. Treasury management palicies approved by the Audit Commithee of the Board have been
put in place o minkmize these risks, including the cumencies and types of invesiment mstruments i1 uses.
For 2003-2004, the Corporation will invest its cash balances in Canadian dollars, to toke advantage of
favourable interest rates and eliminate its exposure to foreign exchange loss, The treasury unit alsa reports
o & regular basis on the credil status of the financial ingtitutions holding its cash.

In terms af the risk becorning illiquid, mast of the Corporation™s transactions outside the LS, ane structuned
o avoid Ehis risk, as the exparber normally receivis payment only after prior payrment 10 OCC by the foreign
buyer, Under the DPSA with the LS., however, CCC may pay its supplier before receiving payment from the
custormer, The Corporation has sccess to lines of credit up f0 240 million with a Canadian fmancial instrtution
16 address iguidity requirements if requingd.,

Risk Capital Allocation

The Corporation allocates its available risk capital betwein its performance risk abligatons and its foreign
credit risk obdigations based on limits imposed by the Board of Directors, The wtilization status of its risk
capital is reported to the Board of Directors at each mesting.

Performance risk saposures ane Turiher subdivided into two cateparies: 1) exposures that fit within noemal
risk tolerance parameters and 2) exposures that are above mormal risk and have been allocated fo the
Corporation™s Small and Medium-siped Enterprise (SME) Risk Fund,

SMES typically tend to be wesker than larger companies in one or all of COCs principsl sreps of due diligence
meview: financial, technical, and mansgenal capacily. A% nabted abowe, CCC takes  hands-on Bppaasch o
ackiressing these risks, notably through the negotiation of the foreign contract, However, in some cases, the
Corporation is unablie to completely mitigate all of the propect risks, which nesults in some residual exposure
to the Corporation, and consequently an inability 1o participate in a transachion under COC's normall rigk
tolerance parameters,

The SME Risk Fund enabibes the Corporation 1o participate in some of these highersisk transaclions, where
the exposure can be quantified and a comesponding risk premium can be changed, over and above CCC's
normal fee-for-service, In the future, it is planned 10 increase the limits of the Fund significantly, based an
the Corporations experence 1o date and increased equity cagetal,

The Financial Rigk Analysis Services Unit of the Conporation regularly monitors the Corporation's risk exposure,
and based on past and current transactional experience and the curent domestic and foresgn market
ervironments, updates the Corporation’s risk capital allocation ratios accordingly, It is management’s
responsibility o cperate within the portfalic risk capital allocation limits established by the Board, Any
exceptions to limits require specific Board appeaval,
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Financial Statements
and Notes

The financial statements of the Canadian Commencial Corporation and all information in this annual report
are the responsibility of management and have been approved by the Board of Directors, The statermsents
have [siEn l.:'ll.'l.:'H”.".‘i in accordance with Canadian E.L':H."-El:|'_-' SCCepled aCCoUnMINE BRINCIDMES, UWSINE
MANSEETENT S DESt E5HIMATEE and jl.-'iJEA'lrlL'l'lli-. whené appropriabe. Financial information |.'l'l:"5t!||:L‘d ElSrwhene

in the annual report 15 consstent with the statements

In dischargeng its responsibility for financial reporting. management maintains and relies on financial and
management control systems and practices which ane designed to provide reasonable assurance that
iransactions ane authoriped, assets ane safeguarded, and proper necords ané maintamed. These controls and
practices are intended 19 énsend th orderly condisct of business, the stcurdsy of acoounting records, the
tirmily preparation of relable financial information and adhenence (0 corporate policies and stafulory

reguIrETRALSs,

The Audit Committes owersses management's respongibilites for maintaining adeguate contral Systems
and the qusality of financial reporting. The Corporation’s external auditor has full and frée acoess 1o thi Audit
Cormmities 1o discuss the nesults of her work and 1o expiets her CORCEMS and apinions.

The independent awditor, the Awditor General of Canada, i responsible for auditing the transactions and
fimancial siatements of the Corporation, and for issuing her report thercon,

) -

Woagion Rarpre P Thipl

Douglas Patriquin Paul J. Thoppal, CA
Président VWice-Fresident,
Ritk and Financial Servioes

Uttawa, Canada

May 30, 2003
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AUDITOR'S REPORT

To THE MINISTER FOR INTERMATIONAL TRADE

| have audited the balance sheet of the Canadian Commencial Corporation as at March 31, 2003 and the
statemints of operations and retained earnings and cash flow for the year then ended. Thise financial
statements ane the responsibility of the Corporation’s management. My responsibility is to sxpress an epinian
on these financial statements based on my audit,

| conducted my audit in sccordance with Canadian generally sccepted auditing standards, Those standands
nequire that | plan and perform an aedit to oblain reasonable assurance whether the financial staterments
are frvg of material misstatement. An aedit includes examining. on & test bass, evidence supparting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principhes whed and significant estimates made by managemant, as well a5 evaluating the owerall financial
statement presentation.

Iy opinicn, thise Tinancial statements present Tairly, in all material respects, the fingncial pasition of the
Corporation as at March 31, 2003 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then
endid in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles, As required by the Financial
Administration Act, | report that, in my opinion, thise principles have been applied on a basis consistent
with that of the preceding year.

Further, in my opinign, the transacticns of the Corporation thal héve come to my natice during fy audit of
the financial statements haee, in all significant respects, bedn in accordance with Part X of the Fraansial
Adminisiration Act and regulations, the Canadian Comrmercial Corparation Acf and the by-laws of the
Corporation.

e
i 5

Jahin Wiersema, Ch

Assistant Auditor General

for the Auditor General of Canada

Ottawa, Canada
May 30, 2003
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Balance Sheet

Az 3t Marchi 31 (in thousands of dollars)

ASSETS
Cash and shor-berm deposits (Note 40 % 31,083 $ 92,123
Sepregated irvesiments (ot 50 - 101,835
Accounts recerrable (Mafe &) 233 654 211,027
Raceivable from the Gowesmmaent of Canada 107 13,431
Sdvances to Canadian cxporters 40,076 &1,713
Progress payments fo Canadian exporters 111,412 192,024
416,322 672213
Capital assets (Male 7J el 2550
% 419,308 $ 674,763
LEREILITIES
Accounts peyabbs and sccrued liabalities (Nede &) % 2174938 $ 242,731
Loan from the Gowernment of Canada (Mare &) - 10,000
Advanoes from foreign cushomers 51,186 183,471
Progress payments from foreign customers 104,753 191,497
Prosision for additional contract and related costs (Note 11) 3551 5,406
37T A58 633,105
Employee severance benefits 1,053 SE8
378,531 634,003
Confingencies. (ole [2)
EQUITY OF CAMADA
Contributed suplus (Mafe 17 28,000 28,000
Retained sarmings 12,777 12,670
40,787 40,650
$ 419,308 % 674,763

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,

Approved:

ACodms

Chair, Board of Directors

CCC Anfiusl Report 2002-2003 Cradibility - Confidéncg -

Chair, Audit Committes

Cofilracts
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Statement of Operations
and Retained Earnings

For the year ended Manch 31 {in thousands of dodlars)

REVENLES
Commencial trading transactsons (abe 13 $1.242.149 $1.209.524
Less: Cost of commercial trading transactions 1.234. 117 1.204.22F
Gross mangin 8,032 5297
Ml inbenest income 1,365 a2l
{Loss) gain on foreign exchange (2,172} 414
N#t Rewenues 6,625 8,248
EXPENSES
Additional contract and melabed costs et L e
Administrative expenses (Mane 14 20,854 19,007
Tedal supanses 23,149 21,550
Med results of operations beforg Pardiamentary appropriation (16,524} (13,302}
Parliamentary appropriation {Mare 160 16,631 15,831
Mt results of operations 107 2,549
Retained carmings ot beginning of year 12,670 10,141
12777 $ 12670

Retained eanings at end of year

The acoompanying nobes are an irtegral part of the financeal stabements.
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Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended March 31 (in thousands of dollars)

CASH FLOWS FROM DIPERATING ACTIVITIES

Recepts from fortign customers $ 983260 $ 1.2594.069
Inberest received 1,355 2410
Fees for senvice and ofher income received 7264 5474
Paymants to Canadian exporiers {1, 10,507 ] (1,265,504 ]
Administraive payments (20,485] (19,053]
Cash {used inh provided by operating activities (179,103} 12,996

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of capital assats (1,035] (2.243]
Purchases of shor-teom deposits - (101.895]
Redemplions of short-term deposits 101 &35 115,504
Cash provided by investing acinndies 100,250 11,356

CASH FLOWS FROM FINAKNCING ACTIVITIES

Parliamentary appropriation- operaling 21,955 10,545
Parliamentary appropriation- confribufed surplus 8,000 .
Lean {repaidh received from the Gowernment of Canada (10,000] 10,000
Cash provided by financing activities 19,955 20,545
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and short-torm deposits (2,772] 434
Increase (decrease) in cash and shod-term deposits (61,080] 45,341
Cash and short-term deposils ol beginning of year 92,123 46,782
Cash and short-benm deposits at end of year 5 31,053 5 az.123

Thie accompanying nobes are an inlegral part of the financsal statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

March 31, 2003

1. KATURE, ORGANIZATION AMD FUNDING
The Canadian Cammercial Corporation (1he "Corporalion” or “CLC") was established i 1946 by the Camadian
Commencial Corporation Actand = an agent Crown conporation listed in Part | of Schedule (1| to the Firancial
Admursiation AT,

The Corporation generally acts a5 the prime contracting agency when foreign customers, fonelgn gevemments,
intematicnal organizations. of prvate seclor buyers, wish to pufchase products and services from Canada
throigh the Canadian Government. Condracts are made with these foreign customers and tha Corporation
eniers into cormesponding supply contracts with Canadian exporters.

Farliamnent has proviced the Conporation with $28 million as contributed surpdus. Anmually, the Conpodation’s
aperations are funded prmarily throwgh a combination of parliamentary appropriations, inferest income, cost
recovery, fees for senvice and recelable discounting revenues,

The Comporation i not subject 1o the provisions of the Income Tax Aot

On April 19, 2002, the Camadian Commercial Corporabian Ach was amended. The amendmends to tha Act
pesmid the Conporation io borrow from the Consolidated Revenue Fund of olher sowrces for an amound not to
excead 350 million (pressousty B10 millkon), to charge fees for serdces, and 1o separate the position of
Chairman and President.

2. SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTING FOLICIES

Thesa financial statemsants ae prepared in acoordance with Canadian penerally accepted acoounting pnciples.
A summary of significant policies folloes:

(2} Use of plimpios
The preparation of financial statements in accordance waith Canadian generally accepled accounding
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and labilitses and disclosure of confingent assets and liabalities a1 1he date of the financial
stataments and the reported amounts of revenues and sxpenses during the year. The most significant
manapement estimates are the provision for addidional contract cosis and iha employes severance benafits.
Actual results could difier from those estimabes.

i) Confracts
The Comparation reconds s commencial trading revenues, and related costs, when a deliveny has taken place
ihis passing tilke to the foreign cusbomer, of, in the case of progress payments, upon acceptance of
progress illings from Canadian exporters for work pdormed.

Progress payments, whene alkewed, represent paymants from foresgn customens and to Canadian exporers
on conlracts associaled with the work performed on a contract beading up to dalivery, Usually these
paymeants represent up to 15 percent of eosts incurmed. Sinca tille has mot yel passed 1o foreign cusiomers,
b Comporaton recognizes the peogress payments made to Canadian exporters a5 an assat and the progress
paymants received from forelgn customers as a liabdlity. Progress payment assats and habildies aoe reduced
upan completion of delivery and acceptance by the forelgn custcmer,

Advances from foreign customers and ko Canadean exporiers represant a down payment made at fhe oulset
af the comtract before any work has besn performed.

Prior ho the amendment of the Canadian Commarcia! Corparahion Acf on April 19, 2002, the Comporation
vias ondy allowed bo recower costs dirsctly ncumed upon securing specific international contracts. Amounts
reciversd on international coatracts signed prior to this dale afe recognized in commecial trading revenies
s earmed when:
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{1} daliveries have bean made by the Canadian sxparer: or
{2) substarial work has been performed by (he Canadian expocter in the case of progress payments.

Upan the coming inlo force of this amendment to the Act, the Corporation was permitted to chamgs
conmercial fees for services. Commescial fees penerated on inlernational contracs signad on or subbeguent
fo Apeil 19, 2002, are recognized in commercial trading revenues when services an daliverad,

Receivable discounting révenues are revenues generaled by the Corporation based an (he difference
Betasen the amount the Comporation pays to the Canadian exporter and the amount the Canadian exporber
criginally billed the Corpacation.

Additioral contract and related costs are costs incurred primarily as a resull of Canadian exporlers failing
1o Fulfil their chligations 1o the Corporation and are determined on & contract-by-contract basis, together
with associnted lagal and olher costs. Thise costs ane recorded in the stalement of aperations in the year
in which the non-performance is identified and the sdditicnal cass to be incurred by the Corporation are
ressonably determinable.

fe) Forsign corremcy lranslation
Monetany assets and liabilities denominated in foneign currencies ang tramslated indo Canadian dollars a1 ihe
year-and excharpe rales, Revenues and expendss, ane (rarsialed a1 the snerags monihly exchangs rate.

‘Working capilal i maintained in curmencies ofher than Canadian dollars o facililate cash flows between
foreign customers and Canadian exporbers.

fif) Cash and shon-tenm deposis
Cash and short-berm depotits includes cash, demand deposits snd temparary investrments, maturing in less
than three manths trom acquisition date.

fa) Capital sesels
Capital asssts, primarily costs mssocisled with the design and devslopnent of infoermation systems are
racordad, when significant, aMer technological feasbility s established. These capital asssts are amorti zed
&n & straight-line basis over the estimated wseful lite of five years.

{1} Parliamewary sppropriations
FPaliamenlany appropristions that are not in the nature of contribubed capital are reconded a8 Tunding in

the year for which they are approprisled, except as follows. Appropristions restricted by legiskstion and
related to experass of future periods are deferred and recognized as funding in the period in which the
ralaled eapanses are incuired. Appropriations wsed for (he purchase of capital assels are deferred and
amantized on thi same Basia s the related ssset.

{g) Pension plam
Employess of the Corporation padicipate in the Public Senvice Superannuation Plan sdminisbensd by the
Government of Canada, Under present bagislation, confriutions made by the Corparation bo e Plan ane
2.14 times the emplayess’ conlributions on sccount of current serice on amounts of salaries balow
$100,000 annually. These contributions represent the total pendion obligations of the Comporation and ane
charged to operations on & current basis, The Corporation is nof required under present legislation o
make conlributions with respect o any actuarial deliciencies of the Fublic Service Soperannualion
Acoount.

i) Emplapes severancs bewelits
Employess of the Corporation are enfitled to specified severance benefits, calculated at salary levels in
effect af the firme of bermination, & provided for under collective sgreements and conditions of amployrment.
Thee liability for employes severance benedits i3 estimated by management based on current entitlements
and is recorded in the sceounts &5 the benelils scorue bo employess,
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3. FAIR VALLE OF FIMAMCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The fair value of cash and shor-lermn deposits, accounts recenabile, receivable fromm The Gosemnment of Cansda,
advances to Canadian exporiers, progress payments bo Canadian expofiers, accounts payable snd accrusd
liabilities, advances from foreign cusiomers and progress payments. from Tomeign cusiomens, since They hve
anort maturities, is pquivalent 1o their carying amounts.

4. CASH AND SHORT-TERM DEPOSITS

A at March 31, 2003, cash and shorl-term deposils intlude:

Year ended Masch 31 (in thousands)

2003 2002
s men o

Canadian gollars 15448 $15.448 LFa07 $17.407
.5, dolkars 1035 10,326 44,252 73,734
Australian dollars 4,537 4,031 472 358
ELURD 478 167 - .
British pound sperling 14 80 la7¥ 334
Easiem Canbbean @ollams 202 mi 457 Zo)
31,083 £92,123

The Conporation invests in shar-term depesits in Canadian Schedule A of B hanks A March 31, 2003, the
Fverkpe berm to maturity of shoet-ferm deposits was 3 days (2002 - 3 days). The overall portfalio yeld at
March 31, 2003 was 269% (2002 - 1.92%). Cash and shori-lerm deposits are recorded al cosd which
appraximabes fair value.

Of the cash and shor-term deposits, $20,007,000 (2002 - $14, 889 000) represants funds receved Irom
fareign cusiomers which will be remitbed to Canadian exporers at laler dales in acoordance with contracis.
Where contracted, these funds may socrue inferes] bo the eredii of the Canadian exporler of fofeign customer.

5. SEEREGATED INVESTMENTS
The Corperation halds signaficant advances from foreign customens o Canadean exporiers which, upen demand
by one of the contractual pastied, are sapregated and invested separately Iram the Comaration's cash and
short-term depesits. In these mnstances, inferest earned i credited b the benebit of the respactive fareign
customer or Canadian exporber.

Sapregated invwesiments are shor-term deposils in Canadian Schedule & or B banks and are made ug ol the
Tallowirg:

Year ended March 31 (in thousands)

2003 2002
Canadias m Yield  Canadian 1a Yield
dedlars dadlars maturity
Imeesirnent A - = - £2.7654 e 1.65%
Imeesirment B - = - 849,131 2 2.75%
£101. 895

&. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES
Abcounis recemable are dee an normal international trade barms and ane genecally non-indensst bearing.

Atcounts F-l]'.!ﬂt are due anononmal irade amms, Eint!fll for actounts pﬂjﬂﬂ by Carlain meall-madinm
enferprites with contracts sipned prior to lanuary 2001, Where these contracts have nol been completed,
related accounts payable are paid within 15 days.

Crgdililily = Conlidence Conlracis



7. CAPFITAL ASSETS
Year ended March 31 (in Ehousands of dallars)

H003 2002
ot Mo e
Inbormaleon sysbems 3,583 597 §2.086 §2,550

Inchuded in sdministrative expenses is $597,000 (2002~ Mil) of amertization,

B. LOAN FROM THE GOVERMMENT OF CAMADR
Priar 1o Agril 19, 2002, the Corporation had aulhceity 1o draw laans from the Consolidated Revenus Fund,
subject 10 Governar-in-Council and Minister of Finance approvals, in amounts up 1o  total of $10 mallion as
tequired to supplement ils working eapital,

Duaring the year ending March 31, 2002, the Corporation was able o borrow amounts with approval fram e
Minister ol Finance for up to 120 days at the Consolidated Revenpe Fund lending rate bo Crown conporations
which equals the lales! svailable interest rate on comparable benm Tregsury bills plus 1/B of 1%. OF the
$10 millicn outstanding as af March 31, 2002, $1.5 million was paid on Apeil 26, 2002 bearing an interest
rate of 2.12% and £8.5 million was paid on July 21, 2002 bearing an inlerest rate of 2 28%.

9. DEMAND OPERATING CREDIT FACILITY
On August 16, 2002, the Corporation opensd & revalving credit Tacility providing sceess to funds in the
amouri of $40 millicn Canadian of its U.S. dollar equivalenl. Indebledness under this agreement is unsecured
and this credit facility has o expiry date. As at March 31, 2003, there were o draws on this line of enedit.

10. CONTRACTUAL DELIGATIONS AND RISK MANACEMENT
fa) Confractual obligalions sed incemaitios
The Corporation & obligated to complete numserous conlracts wilh Toreign cusiomens. As of March 31, 2003,
ihe total contract value remaining (o be fullilled approximates $2.0 billion (2002- $2.3 billion).

Under the Progress Payment Program, e Corporalion indemnifiss participating banks for amounts they
have advanced 1o Canadian exporters. The Corporation may claim litle 10 the works in progress should 2
Canadian exponter [ail to comgiete 3 conlract. The amount of culslanding indemnities a5 of March 31, 2003
s $11,225,000 (2002 - $5.050,000).

Undder a specific series of conlracts, ihe Corporalion also indemnilies a bank for amounts il kas advanced
1 Canadian eapiriers. The Corporalion hes access 10 8 mumbser of commercial securifies should the foreign
party fail (o repay amounts owed. The amound of gulstanding indemnities as of Manch 31, 2003 is
$30,470,000 (2002 - 345,773, 0000

() Risk mamagement
Im terrms of foreign customer credil risk, (he Corporation generally extends open account lerms o parties
wilh @ creds! rating of &1 least AAA, and Seeks securily whene the rating falis below this threshald,

To address foreign exchange rishs, conlracts with foreign customers and corresponding contracts with
Canadian exporers are generally entered inlo in the same cumrency. The Corporation uses this and offer
technigues to effectively transfer the currency risk to the Canadian exporer.

11. PROVISION FOR ADDITIONAL COMTRACT AND RELATED COSTS
The Corporation may incur sdditional conlract and relaled costs should Canadian exporbers not fullil the lerms
of their confracts, The Corporation has recorded a provision of $3,551,000 as of March 31, 2003 (2002 -
$5,406,000), representing management’s best estimale of the additional cosls which will be incurred by the
Corporation 1o meet ils contraciieal obligations.
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CONTINGENCIES
The Corporation is the claimant or defendant in certain pending claims and lawsuits, While the damages
being clairned by the plantitfs are signilicant, based on adwice from legal counsel, management believes that
the potential liabilities of the Corporation and consequenl damages of awards arising Irom such liabilities
ane, at pl'ﬁﬁ'll. ] delerminable.

Amounts payable, if arry, will be recorded in the year in which they can be determined.
COMMERCIAL TRADING TRANSACTIONS

Commercial trading transsctions arising from the Corporaticn's facilitation of sales of Canadian goods 1o
Tereign customers, which inclute governments, inlermational agancies and other buyers throughaut the weeld,
wore distributed as Tollows:

Year eénded Masch 31 (in thowsands of dollars]

2003 S0
U.5. powerniment and other buyers $M3.030 §908,383
Cther foreign gowernments and buyers 282,000 270,683
United Nations agencies 16,128 30,458

£1.242,148 $1.209,524

Commercial trading transactions are compiised of confract billings of $1.2 billion (2002- §1.2 billion) and
e for services and ciber income of $8,032 000 for the year ended March 31, 2003 (2002- $5,297,000).

Commescial trading irarmsactions are dslingt rom business walume which i ihe tenm used o describe The 1olal
walue of confracts and amendmens signed duiing the year. Business wolumse for the year ended March 31, 2003
amounted to 3952 million (2002 - $1.2 billioa).

ADMIKISTRATIVE EXPEMSES
Administraiine expenses were distribuled a5 Folkres:

Year ended Mach 31 (in thousands of dallars)

2003 e

Workiorce compensation £0.273 £8,6091
Tranel and haspitality 1122 1,127
TelecommuniCabions, courier, Translations J4B 361
Marketing and promotion 1,026 679
Hurman resource iraining and olher iniliatives 4351 3
Rent BT2 G
Soltware' hardware and support 128 b
Fullic Works and Gowvernment Senvices Canada lee lor savice 5,837 5,507
Az ation 547 -
Other pxpenses 499 527
520,854 $19,007

RELATED PARTY TRAMSACTIONS

The Corparation i related in terms of common gwnership to all Govemment of Canada depart ments, apencies
and Crown conporationd. The Corporation enters into transactions with these enlities in (he normal cowrse af
Dusiness,

The Corporaticn had the folloming transactions with relaed parties in addition 10 those disclosed abiewheng
im fhete fimancial Slatemenis.
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{a) Publie Works and Sovermment Services Canady
Fublic Works and Governiment Services Canada provides contract managemen services bo the Corporation
a1 negotisted rates based in part on the amounts of contracts procured, and provides certain functions at
ol

For the year ended March 31, 2003 the coad of these serices amounted to $5,937.000 (2002 -
5,507 .000) and is included in sdministrative axpanses,

Ir o circumstance, Public Works and Gowemment Serices Canada prowickes ihe Corporation with contract
managerment services i no addilional cost. It s mol practscable 1o delermene the cost of thede senviced.
Accordingly, 1he value of (hess serdces i3 nof recorded in the Corporation’s accounis

(i} Dapartment of fastice
The Department of Justice provides. legal Senioes to the Corporation and represents it in certain matbers.
The Corporation pays for begal fees and expendss incurred in connection with specific sctions. For the year
ended March 31, 2003 the cost of legal fess and experses in the amount of 5364000 (2002 - §276,000)
& included in adminstiative expenses, and i the amount ol $305,000 (2002 - £396,000) ane intluded
in additional contract and related costs,

A% A result of thase related parly transactions, (he amounts due from and [0 hese parlies ane mil (2002
- 39,0000 and $651.000 (2002 - $370,000) and are included in accounts receivable and accounts

payable respectively.

16. PARLIAMENTARY APPROPRIATIONS
During the ysar, the Parliament of Cansda authorired appropriations for the Corparation in the amount of
16,631,000 [(2002- $23,831,000). A portion of the amount suthorized in the year 2002, $8,000,000, was
lar HUH:F parposes and thus was sccourrled Tor as contributed 5|.l'|:l1I.H..

17. LEASE COMMITMENTS
Fulure minimum payments by fiscal year on operating leases for premises are a5 follows:

2003-04 $905,000
2004-05 789,000
2005-05 396,000

$2.090,000

18. COMPARKTIVE FIGURES
Certain 2001-02 ligures have been reclassiliag 1o conform with (he currenl year presantation,
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Covporate Counsel
and Corporatn Secretary
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WVioe-President
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CCC

Partners

in 2002-2003, CCC strengthened and expanded its natwork of alliances with almost 2,000 exporters and 106 intematsanal
cusiomers within rational gowernments and international agencies, as well as the prvate sector in 31 countries argund the world,

Canadian exporters mntrar:tmg through CCC in 2002-2003

ABE Ing,
Saint-Laurent, Cudtac

ACCESSAIR I,
Wil Sa rivl, Gl
Accucaps Industries
‘Windsce, OnEaria
AcTo & IRE.
Rig . Buritrah Gl i bia
Active Gear Co, of Canada Lid,
Congond, Ontarg
Acton Intemational Ine.
Bcton Vala, Chotbe:

Air Data Inc.
Wille Miont Royal, Cudber
Aiir Labrador
Gt By Liabeidin, Mewdoundlind
and Equipmant Lid.
Bramales Onbaho
Ak Air .
Irmrvih, Morthvwesl Taritories
Amedie Limited

Sl Lowresd, Cudbe:

Aburminum Feunsdry & Patbern Waorks Lid.
Crmlbec

Do,
Anachemia Canada Inc.
Laching, Godise
mmmm

Anqﬁ;mnmwtr;lr:

Torentn, e

ArvinMeritor Ride Control Products, Inc.,

Toronto, Omaric
Allanlis Systems Intemnational bne.
Brampigen, DwLars
Automatic Coating Lid,
Forcntn, Omae
Banmer Pharmacans (Canads) Lbd.
Coils, Aloaita
Barer Engineering Co.
Mlrinial, Qudbec
[Esultar Compadite Inc.
Windeoe, Drdbas
Boavers Dental
Mebouriakasng. Ontano
Best Cocking Pulses Inc.
Ferwalt, Socidciermgn
Bombardier Ing,
Ielirabesl. (ussbes
Bombandier Ine.
Mg, Qeelanio
Bombardier inc,
Doramseeaw, Ontano
Bradley Air Servioes Limited
Canp, Dnkans
Brisiol Limited
‘Winnipeg, Manitcha
Burder's Senvices Lid.
Gistaa By, Newhcundling
C2 Logistics Inc,
Citawa, Onfano
CAE |nc.
Saint Lauren], Cube:
CMC Elecironics Imc,
Wille 5ant:Lamrent, Cudbec
CMC Elsctronics Inc.
Kanata, Ontaio
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B-l'\-h'ﬂﬁ'lh"-. By
CTF Systems (2001) Inc,

Por? Coquitlam, Ertrsh-:t-ul..-ﬂl:qa
CYMC .

@T@ﬂm&
Callan Technology Lid.

Karata, Ontario

Cameboid, Lid.
Whilky, Ontasia

Foods
Bontnial, Gudher
Canada Allied Diessl Co. L.
Laching, Guibec
Canadian Bank Note Company Lid,
Otfiawa, Ortang
Canadian Helicopbers Limited
Lirs. Cadres, Qudbe:
B Ld,
wvel, Sasiahchewan
Carleton Life Support Technologies Lid.
Misssiaaugs, Onlano
Casavant Frires Lide.
Si. Myache, Qudtec
Cerficom
Misasmyugs, Ontana
Chemas Industries Inc.
Werreon, Brigrsh Columbia
Clienfronics Inc.
Edmanion, Alberta
Com Dev Lid,
Cambindigs, Ontang

& Power indusires

Terail, OAeio
Dorotheea Knitting Mills Lid,

Toronto, Oniterio
ELCAN Technol ogies
Midlacsd, Onkang

ELl Eco Logic Intemational Ing,
Anckwood, Ontano

g:w. Britigh m:|m:¢mﬂ

Excalibur Systems Limited

Kanata, Onlano

%"1:,.,,,,"_ mlrﬂ:.
FAG

Limited
Siratfond, Ontana

Cigdibility - Conlidence - Contracis

Toranla, Dnliris
FT5 Fiaw Training Systems Lid,

Firsera Canads Lid,
Suinipg, Briligh ColusEsia
Galllum Softwane Inc,
Ottewa, Orkar
General Dynamict Canads Lid.
Biapian, Drlars
General Dynamics Canada Lid,
Calgary, Albarts
iGeneral Dynamics Land Systems - Cansda

Lindan, Onlano
General Kinetics Enginesning Corporation
Brampios, Qnkang
General Motors of Canada Limited
Londan, Qe
General Swi
Waughes, Ontang
Genia
Sarcoar, Bnbes Columbia
oodrich Contral Systems Lid.
Idoardsd, Daalteas
Goodrich Systemns Services
Burlingion, Dntang

Goodrich Landing Systems Services
Ol b, Ordtaris

& Conftrols Lid.

Slate Works Company Ing.
g, Ngwipundland
Hisous-Deviek [ne.
Longusuil, Cralbec
ICH Canada Lid.
Idoevinisd. Gusbeec
NP Lisnited
Halifas Courty, Mova Sootia
ISP Growp Limited
Halifax, Mows Scoba
IMP Growp Limited
Eriehd, Koy Soaba
INT Corporaticn
Ingesrsoll, Onfang
INW Inchustries Lid,
Chitleveck, Briligh Calumles
Indal inc.
Missaasiugs, Onlanio
Ireafitud National
Saanbe-Foy, Qubies
Interactive Visadization Systems Inc,
Fredencion, New Erurswck
International Ciil Avistion Onganization
dirvndad, Cuabbepe
international Code Services Inc,
Aieoes, Ontana
Imternational Thesmasl Ressarch Lid.
Rickmond, Brilish Columbas

Iso Tech Deslgn Inc.
Exnt-Laureni, Cudbesr



H.P. Colkection Lid.
Wnncaeaei, Britan Columbis
Kasten Chase Applbed Ressasch
Misseaugs, Ontaro
Hots Machine and Tool Company
Brampion, Dntang
LIGH Ing.
Monl Foyal, Québec
LMS Sysbems Int.
Willg St Launan, Chdleas
Lo Groups Tecnum |nc,
Montnia), Gutter
Indusstries Ine.

Communications
L".'-'.'i?\w-.w Bntmis ﬂ#umw*
MG Fog Generators

Morinkal, Cubteas

MDS Aera Support Corporaticn
Ottewa, Dkares

Hﬂlﬂﬂlmliﬂ.llwm Systems.

Mepean, Driario
MTU Maintenance Cansda Lid.
Richmand, Exifish Columbs
Mac Id Dethwiber and Advanced
21 Y et
Brampioe, Orcang
MacDonald Dethwiler and Asociates Lid,
Bichmand, Brilith Columbes
Commaunstytions Lid,

ni, Ontaes
Erﬂl'rll Limited
Head of leddore. Mova Sook

Marsdabe Erechors l‘l'llﬂ-lu Lid,
Hig Revar, Nirw Brisvnch

Marathon Walch Comgpany Limited
Bichmand Hill, Drtars

Mark Blevis
Otigwa, Detaris

Mecair Inc.
Pointe Dave, Quibec
Ime,
O, Dagariy
Menasco
O lbe, Orlario
Ine.
Ajax, Ontadio
MuetalCraft Marine Inc.,
Kingsion, Ontana
Micro Dplics Detign Corporation
Monehan, Niw &Eﬂm
Mitrade Intermational Inc.
Montniad, Gudtec
Nasittug
Ottpwn, Degaris
Maheal Resources Canada
Otiswa, OnEari
Hav-Addy Limited
Mominisl, Dudtes

Apronav Intemational Inc,
Pounbe Clare, udbec

Ewu. mlt?“lﬁ

Hoedee Systems Inc.
Miszssauga, Ontang

Horthrop Grumman Canada Corporation
Tersnls, Dmaria

Herthstar Asrospace (Canasda) ing.
Milton, Onlario

Limited

rDell ng
Cambidps, Daland
Ocean'Works International Ing.
Worth Vancouser, Brifish ColumBia
Deulus Info Inc.
Tiergalo, Delaria
Ontarlo Medical Supply Lid,
Ottswa, Osksra
h Ine.
horth York, Degaris
Orenda
Messissauips, Ontario
Létnismesu Lbbe.
nt-Hyacintha, Gl
Pairiol Forge |nc.
Brantford, Ontano
Pharmakab (1982) Ine.
Loibais, Gl

Pharmasclence Inc.
Moniraal, Cudter

Pmﬂt Indernational Inc.
ton. Alberta

Pratt & Wh Canada Ine.
Liprigusud, b

Precision Techmology Lid.
Cambndge, Ontand

Pro-5afe Fire Training System Ine,
Kobed, Dntang
Lid.
Wosinksl | Cudtses
Professionad Maching Senvice
Waskmam, Onlaio
Resounce Management Inc.
Aurors, Ontano
Purifics Envincnmentsl Technologes Ine,
Landan, Onlang
% Inc.
Montréal, Sudbec
Guester Tangent
Sidnay, Baligh Codumibaa
Receiver General for Canada
(E
At Sendices Ine.
Dhawrrrezusiim, Mova Soski
tive 5
Burnaty, Brizish Colembia
Remcdr Braing Trust
Chambly. Dodbes
Remiec Inc,
Chambily, (hedbec
Roboliesrch Softwane Inc.
Karuits, Onileio
Is-Fooyee Canacla Limdted
Lachine, Gubbes
Ron Verch
Chilewack, Beiligh Codumbig
Rayal NIH%M!M Lid,
Wood bridge, Ontark
SoV stics (Canada) Inc.
Wille Si-Laurant, Cudbes
SED Systems Ing,
Senkiptonn, Saskalchamen
SHC Tes Ine.
L Gardaur, [husbbes

Satlantéc Inc.
Halifas, Mo Scotia

Corparation
Scarborough, Detacis
Schredner Target Services Canada Lidl
Medcine Hat, Alberta

Seaforth Enginesring Group Inc.
Dartmiouth, Mova Scotia
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Sentinel Canads
e, CudDed

Serco Faclbties Marapement inc.
Gocas Bay, Labrader, Mewfoundand

Simunition
Le Gardkn, Chaifed

SkyWave Mobdle Commundcatians Ing.
sanata, Onlario

Soheil Masn Lid.
Tarcnto, O
i Ing,

Intermationa
Sremmiealie, Gutbe:

Techmo nc.
Rock Forpat, Daalibec

Spar Aercspace Limited

Missmauga, Ontario

Conp.
London, Ontario

Sﬂl}r:;ﬂﬂ.&r.:ru

Standard Asvo Lid.
Winnipeg, Manitcha

Swifisure Spatial 5 Ine.
Wiciorw, Bridsh wrebia

Telefiex Canada Limited
Rictmand, Brabih Columbe

Thermotes Therapy Systems Lid
Calgary, Altata

Todomnakjian Limibed
Miltan, Onlaia

me Limibed
Concond, O i
Tra

mhedico Inc.

Mlgntrial Qudtec

g_mm Systemns Inc.
Wille Saind Laurent, Cudtec

Unmi-ram
Marinam, Onlar

Unigue Broadband Systems Inc.
Goncord, Ontars

Upitron Industries Ltd,
Ribchenad, Detiris

University of Alberta
Edmionion, Alberia

NUMBER OF CONTRACTED
SUPPLIERS BY PROVINCE

ALRERTA 8
Britsn Couusbi 20
ManimoRs

Niow Bausswcs

NEWFOURBLARD

Noron St

MoaTHwEsT TERRITOANS

Onrazio 1
Prince EpanRD [SuaHp

Quisls

SasHATCHEWAN

Toma, o
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of Calgary
Calgary, BlDwrh
Valcom Lid,
Guelph, Ontaria
Visual Canada, Ine.
Torgnin, g
Volva Molor Graders Limited
Goderrch, Criarks
Viulkan Harex Sheslfibar
{Morth America) Inc.
Brantford, Ontaio
Vibements Sienis [ne.
L Gandeur, Gusbe:

Wajax Industries Limited
Missessauga, Onlano

Customers contracting through CCC in 2002-2003

MON-USA

Angola
# Linited Natiens World Feod Frogramme

'm Faderal De Irsersiones

& Aaglizan Propey Truwl, Disciss ol Seaney
= Do tor, Weapons and Yehicke Procuremend
= Embarssy ol Austialia

= Repuldik Oaberrsich
Brazil
= Companhis Energetica Do Asasenas
[CEAM )

ca-ﬁmhhuu Déssratagus du Songn
Cuba

= ATUIWMPOAT

= Coment plEaoors ITH, 5.4,

o Corporac ion Financ s Arucara, 5.8,
Denmank

& Cigrigh Ay

= |pberrational Bevalopment s Blesearch

Canire
= Minislene Yan Defensie
& This Matrofutnien] 19t

w Distritasdors Supenor 5.4
& Ietarruiliong | Qnganatios b Magritun

= Bundessrd Tum Wehiechnk und
Beac hatlung
= Rolis-Aoyoe Deutschlend Lid, & €O NG

India
* Envirgnment Catude

Irnland
= Floor Seasons PTY Lid.

tealy
* Ministor Dalla Difesa

"'lgummﬂd Hanya
Kumwait
& Myrwail Minatey o Debenis
Luceemibourg
o Al Lo g
s E:'.I‘H-Ih'l Intimational Trading Coponstion
= Bombaedier Concarnl, SUA. de C.YC
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Walbar Canads
Wisteiaugs, Onlang

Waltek Motor Tnacks Ing,
Fnjou, Chtec

Weathedhaven Resountes Lid.
Bumsaly, Brtish Colusbia
Wescam Inc,
Burhingion, Ontaro

Heaghts
Kitchargr, Qi
Western Star Trucks Inc.
Keloens, Brish Columba
Wiehel Aeroipace |ne.
Summgriide, Presce Edwand bland

Hetherlands
= Rcyal Npihaeriands: Asrforcg

= The Ratonel Boundary Commission of
Migena

. ﬁn POLITIDISTRIET

& Rl Nowasdpuan Mird
Panama
w fytendad del Canal d& Panama
Saudi Arabia
= Siltan Bin AbdulanT Al-Saud Foundatan

TRt

South Africa
= Technology Exploatagion Caning Lig

= Ay Migglunds AR
& Firgwitety Mpteradlvirk
= B8 Teckeics
Trimidasd and
& Miniey of
United K )
= Didencs Citoing Irtogreed Prjuct T
ng Im ]
= Lomdion Fire and E:-w‘gulnm: Autharity
= Mintgiry of Dafence
» RalisHoyce phe
& Rzeal Air Fascn
= The Master and Pellows of Sebwyn Collegs

= Canmral Boang of Hepith, Repubis of
Zambia

USA
& Aracin Prosing Ground Susporl Bty
= Annishon

= Al Coniracy Fumishing Ing

a Boing Asrospace Operations

= Bambacdiar Ine.

= CAMACO LLE

= Colt's Manuraciuning Company Ing
® Dmnmﬂhd It ]
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H‘?’IM
whmnnd Hill, G

Wire Rope Industries Ltd.

Poang Chaing, G

Woodward Group of Companies

Goose May, Newfoundland
Management Inc.

* Department of the Mes

& Diteciorate of Penansula Condracting

. WLF-ufhnmaﬂ

& Bt Dptema bir

= EEL.PROP

& Firgd PrsDybeiian Chuich

# Flest & Indstnal Supply Center

& Garden B Fengussd of Daliwide. Ine

* Headquariers z

& Hegdquirters ANCDOYAS

= [Bochy Mwiation Co. Lbd.

& Miwirel Canpd Syl Comsand

= Marpland Procuremrant Oidice

- l-lulmq Saand| Command
K i LM c“wm

b H*‘“ magiry & Migging Agendy

2 Marepl Bt Syeiema Commasd

& Mgval Aar Warlpre Coen D

& Naval Facilibes Engineenng Command

& Niredl |fradiibory ﬂmn’ﬂml’ﬁﬂr

= Naval Ocearographic Ofice

& Pigrepl Sga Synterms Command

o Naval Sea Syshems Command

& Marvdl Sorfhss Wailhng Cafilir

= CHiice of Maval Resssrch
= Digden A Logiatcs Cenla
Plal:ncu'mu'lm:lﬂm Inc.

- mﬂ:ﬁlmrhl Syitems

& 52, Addres Linfed Mathodal Chunh

# Sugrer Corporaton Industes

& Tiyresdr Consliuction Company

w115, Armw Armamaent and Chemical
‘-ﬁlhll‘l-l'll'h'lm Langritad At

Commun ialira-Elsctronics

A.nn- Corps of Enginsers

Iricuriiredl Dshriiliofrl Cons mand
Robers Morns Acquisition Cerber
Tk Astometvs RED Command
Tank-Aubomotie and Arraments

Topographic Engineznng Cerver
it g Enesgy
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Glossary

Additional contracl cosls:

Consts incuered by the Corporation 1o meed s confraciual
obligations to foreign buyers when suppliers are unable
1o meet their contraciual commitment 1o QCC. These
may include (he cosd of reprocunement of the cosl of
cOmpensation.

Helvanes payment:
Down payment made by the huuratlrnwtsﬂuhhu
canfract, befone any work hat been perormisd,

Appropriaticns:
Fundirg COC recenes fnom [hé Goverament of Canada
te manage U5, DoD/MASHA Prime Contracts,

Business volurme:

Totad valee of contracts and amendments signed by the
Corporation during the liscal year with respect bo cxpord
Irarsnclions 1o foreign Duyees,

Capital project:

A project in which a significant portion of the work is
parformed by a Canadian exporter, or by its sub-
contractor, in & Targign country andfer the conlrach
containg & significant supply rigk astaciated with the
long-lerm saba of commodilies.

Clierts:
Canadian exporters dodng busimess through CCC,

Contrach:

Lagally binding agresmant between the Corporation and
Cangdian fers of foreign Duyers, wilh respect to
ke supply of & product andior senice,

Confraci amendment:

Variation to the onginal signed condract providing for
add'i:::_iwl or less work than the agreed-upon terms and
condificng,

Confract billings:
The todal amount the mpﬁﬂm invoiced 1o Toreign
customsers for the delivery of products and serdoes.,

Cantracl performance gusmnies:

A governmani-backed assurance provided by the
Corporation to the Toneign buyer that, in the event of non-
perlormance by 8 coniracied supplier, DO will mainiam
the integrity of the confract by means of compensation
or identrfication of an alternate source of supply.

Confract rish:
Poessibility thad the terms and conditions of the contract
may nat be met by all parties io the comract.

Coh recoveny:

Direct costs, such as trawvel expence and direct labour
costs, recoverad by the Corporation on a numbsar of
confracks,

Credit righ:
Possibility of a ceniract party failing te meet ifs
financialpeymeant commaments.

Lo
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Cusiomer:
Foreign buyers doing business thecugh CCC

Dufenze Prodwction Arrangeimeant (DPSAN
Agreament signed In 1956 beteeen Canada and the
United States to allow Canadian industry 1o compete
with U.3. lirms for defence contracls an @ normal,
commercial basis,

Fea-for-service:

Direct and indigect costs ncluding nsk premium and
appropriate service fees charged o wan exporiers
or Toresgn buyers using 000 Serices.

Gainfloss on foreign translation:

Gainioss ressu|Ring troim Lhe mowement in e exchangs
rate which affects the Canadian value of the
Corporation’s forgign exchange holdings.

Financing requeed B cower dinsel oosls inturred on &
project at a siage before the exporter has generated a
recaivable.

Prime contractor:

CCC signs the intermational contract with the customar,
puarantesing that is ferms and conditions will be med,
and then issués a domestas contract to the Canadian
suppdier for the execulion of the work,

Procurement apent:
COC sources Canadian supply for intarmational
cusiomers Irpm Canadian comganies.

Progreys

quntMmgn custemers and ta Canadian
axpoeters on contracts whane the partial recoupment of
costs associated wilh the woek performed on a contract
lepding up 1o Selivery i5 3llowed,

Risk Framework:

The Coiporation’s Risk Managemenl Framework
combines the Board of Directos deective on annual
allgwatrle losses and management’s policies and
praciices related to operational risk mitigation.

Receivables Di Service:

Receivables Discounting Saavice provides to Canadian
companies having contracts with CCC, access to
immediate payments for thair inesices at a reasonable
financing rate. This allows these companies bo meet
thesr (enancial obligations withoul increasing their deld.

Unibionad lesd Ssrvices:

The intermational Prima Comtractor Service has been
broken apart to allow Canadian exporiess to build a
cusiomized service package that mesds thair needs,

- Conlidence - Comtracts



REGIONAL REPRESENTATIVES
CONTACT LIST

Ted Benson

Manager

British Columbia Lisison Office
2000 - 300 West Georgia Street
Yanmcouver, BC

W&B &E1

tal: {604) GE6-4781

fax: {G04) 566-0954

cell: (504) B39-1800

E-mail: benson. ted@ic.ge.ca

Tim Dlsen

Managar

Alberta Linison Offfice

c'o Alberta Economic Dewelopment [AED)
L0155 - 102 Street
Edrmanton, AB

TEJ 4LG

tal: (780 422-8525

fax: (7B0) 422-9127

cell: (780) 717-5288
E-mail: tim.olsan@gov.ab.ca

Angela Wasylynka

Managar

Saskatchewan Liaison Offico

oo Saskatchewan Trade and Expoet Partnership
{STEP)

320 - 1801 Hamilton Streat
Regina, SK

S4P ACH

tal: {306) 7BT-3972

fau: {306) 7B7-66566

E-mail: awasyhynka@sackirade sh.ca

lan Brown
Managar

Dntario Liaisan Office

151 Yonge St., 4th Fl
Toranto, OM

M5C 2W7

fel; (416) 973-50&]

fax: (416) 973-5131
cell: (416) Bl1B-6034
E=rril: begwm.iari@ic.ge.ca

Lue Brunet

Manager

Québec Liaison Office

5 Placa Ville-Marie, Suite 700
Mantrial, GG

H3E 2G2

tel: (S14) 2B3-B791

fam: (S14) 496-4017

E-mail; brunet.luc@ic.ge.ca

Michael Healy

Manages

Mew Brunswick Liaison Office
515 - 670 King Street
Fredaricion, NB

E3B8 5H1

tel: (506) 453-3403

fax: (506) 462-2159
call:(306) 474-3018

E-mail: michael.healy@gnb.ca

Paul Gillis

Manages

Mova Scotia Liaison Office
600 - 1801 Hollis 5t
Halifax, M5

B3J 3C8

fel: (202 426-9630
fam: (202) 428-2054
call: (302) 222-9094G
E-mail; pgillis@ccc.ca





